
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

MEETINGS 

9 a.m.

Friday, September 30, 2016

 2ND FLOOR, J.S. CLARK ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
 SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE 

BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70813



Academic Affairs 

Committee 



ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Friday, September 30, 2016 

9:00 a.m. 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Invocation

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Special Presentation: State of Technology, SUS

6. Information Items:

A. Updates on Memorandum of Understanding for Connect Programs:

SUSLA/SUBR, SUSLA/SUNO & SUSLA/LSUS

B. Update on Academic Stabilization Plan, SUBR

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Mrs. Ann Smith, Chair, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Vice Chair, 

Atty. Tony Clayton, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Mr. Mike A. Small, Dr. Rani Whitfield 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 



























































Facilities and Property 

Committee 



FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE
(Following the Academic Affairs Committee) 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Invocation

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Action Items:

A. Request Approval of Capital Outlay 2017-18, SUS

B. Request Approval of Five-Year Capital Outlay Plans, SUS

6. Informational Item:

A. Priority Projects Update, SUS

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Rev. Donald R. Henry, Chair, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Vice Chair, 

Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Ms. Jordan Franklin, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Jr., Mr. Myron Lawson, 

Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Mrs. Ann Smith 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 



S
y
st

em
 P

ri
o
ri

ty

C
a
m

p
u

s 

P
ri

o
ri

ty

Y
r.

 O
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 

R
eq

u
es

te
d

Campus Emergency Project

Actual Previous 

(approved line of 

credit) FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22

Yrs. 2-5 

Remaining 

Subtotal Project Total 

1 1 2017 SUS

SU System Campuses Deferred Maintenance Projects: Conditions are hazardous to life and 

property, leaking roofs, plumbing, unsafe, HVAC/Elect. issues   $17,500,000 $7,500,000 $5,500,000 $4,500,000 $10,000,000 $17,500,000

2 1 2017 SUBR New Bridge for vehicle and pedestrian traffic.     $7,000,000 $1,200,000 $5,000,000 $800,000 $5,800,000 $7,000,000

3 2 2017 SUBR Replacement of Various Mechanical and Energy Management Control Systems $331,500 $2,983,500 $2,983,500 $3,315,000

4 1 2016 SUNO University Center Air Handling Units - First Floor $87,500 $787,500 $787,500 $875,000

5 1 2016 SUSLA Install DDC HVAC Energy Management System Campus Wide $120,000 $1,080,000 $1,080,000 $1,200,000

6 3 SUBR Elevators Installation (ADA) $350,000 $800,000 $800,000 $1,150,000

7 2 2016 SUNO ADA Compliance, Restrooms, Ramps, and Parking $485,000 $2,182,500 $2,182,500 $4,365,000 $4,850,000

8 2 SUSLA Metro Campus Window Replacement        $1,200,000 $1,200,000 $0 $1,200,000

9 4 SUBR Central Plant Mechanical System Upgrades $350,000 $300,000 $300,000 $650,000

10 3 2013 SUSLA ADA Compliance Projects $100,000 $845,000 $845,000 $945,000

11 5 2013 SUBR Roofing System Repairs $350,000 $579,000 $559,000 $359,000 $535,000 $2,032,000 $2,382,000

12 3 2013 SUNO Cafeteria Roof Replacement $100,000 $400,000 $400,000 $500,000

13 4 SUSLA Install Guardrails in Library Lecture Hall & Science Building $330,000 $0 $330,000

14 6 2013 SUBR Repair Sloughing of Ravine and Bluff $64,800 $700,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,764,800

15 1 2013 SUAG Road Improvement with Erosion Repair HWY 61 at Experimental Station $250,000 $2,250,000 $2,500,000 $2,500,000

16 7 2014 SUBR Mechanical and Plumbing System Upgrades $600,000 $370,000 $845,000 $1,500,000 $3,315,000 $3,315,000

16 4 2013 SUNO Lake Campus Central Plant and Underground Piping $400,000 $3,600,000 $3,600,000 $4,000,000

18 8 2012 SUBR Electrical Power/Lighting System Upgrades $292,500 $2,632,500 $2,925,000 $2,925,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

Total Emergency Projects $64,800 $13,604,000 $27,200,000 $16,294,000 $1,204,000 $2,035,000 $46,733,000 $60,401,800

Southern University and A&M College System

FY2017-2018 THRU FY2021-2022

CAPITAL OUTLAY REQUEST



S
y
st

em
 P

ri
o
ri

ty

C
a
m

p
u

s 
P

ri
o
ri

ty

Y
r.

 O
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 

R
eq

u
es

te
d

Campus Self-Generated Projects (review Business Plan for each Project) Actual Previous FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22

Yrs. 2-5 

Remaining 

Subtotal Project Total 

1 1 2013 SUSLA Student Outdoor Recreational Facility                                  $1,000,000 $100,000 $720,000 $180,000 $900,000 $1,000,000

2 1 2009 SULC Central Parking Garage                                                       $13,000,000 $1,200,000 $8,000,000 $3,500,000 $300,000 $11,800,000 $13,000,000

3 1 2009 SUBR A. W. Mumford Stadium Parking Garage                            $15,000,000 $1,500,000 $13,500,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000

4 2 2009 SUSLA Metro Parking Garage                                                         $10,000,000 $1,000,000 $9,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

5 3 2012 SUSLA New Student Housing                                                          $11,800,000 $1,110,000 $3,920,139 $6,769,861 $11,800,000 $11,800,000

6 4 2012 SUSLA Acquisition of Existing Housing                                            $18,700,000 $18,700,000 $18,700,000

7 $0 $0

8 $0 $0

Total Self-Generated Projects $0 $20,000,000 $8,720,000 $6,290,000 $18,720,139 $15,769,861 $49,500,000 $69,500,000



S
y
st

em
 P

ri
o
ri

ty

C
a
m

p
u

s 

P
ri

o
ri

ty

Y
r.

 O
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 

R
eq

u
es

te
d

Campus Continuing Projects Actual Previous FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22

Yrs. 2-5 

Remaining 

Subtotal Project Total 

1 1 2016 SUBR T. T. Allain (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                                           $1,010,000 $1,010,000 $0 $1,010,000

2 2 2016 SUBR A. W. Mumford (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                                   $7,900,000 $1,400,000 $5,000,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $7,900,000

3 3 2016 SUBR F. G. Clark Activity Center (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                  $7,450,000 $3,600,000 $3,850,000 $0 $7,450,000

4 4 2013 SUBR SU Laboratory School Addition and Upgrades                                             $6,000,000 $800,000 $3,500,000 $1,700,000 $5,200,000 $6,000,000

5 1 2016 SUSLA Workforce Training Center                                                                          $6,271,000 $246,000 $5,549,000 $476,000 $6,025,000 $6,271,000

6 5 2013 SUBR Sewer and Street Improvements at Jesse Stone and E. C. Harrison $420,000 $350,000 $350,000 $770,000

7 6 SUBR Information Center Building $825,000 $1,175,000 $0 $2,000,000

8 1 2014 SUNO Student Life Center $500,000 $500,000 $7,500,000 $7,500,000 $8,500,000

9 7 2013 SUBR Replacement of Underground Fuel Tanks and Pumps $30,000 $470,000 $0 $500,000

10 2 SUSLA H & R Building Elevator Addition $30,000 $270,000 $270,000 $300,000

11 1 SUAG A. O. Williams Hall Renovation $188,000 $1,000,000 $0 $1,188,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

Total Continuing Projects $7,553,000 $13,491,000 $18,669,000 $2,176,000 $0 $0 $20,845,000 $41,889,000

S
y
st

em
 P

ri
o
ri

ty

C
a
m

p
u

s 
P

ri
o
ri

ty

Y
r.

 O
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 

R
eq

u
es

te
d

Campus New Projects Actual Previous FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22

Yrs. 2-5 

Remaining 

Subtotal Project Total 

1 1 2013 SUBR Administration Building Window Replacement $445,500 $400,500 $846,000 $846,000

2 1 2013 SUNO Bashful Administration Building Air Handling Replacement - 2nd & 3rd Floors $87,500 $787,500 $787,500 $875,000

3 2 2017 SUBR Renovation of James Lee Hall / Health Research - Chemistry               $5,000,000 $700,000 $3,000,000 $1,300,000 $4,300,000 $5,000,000

4 1 SUSLA Renovation of Collier Hall Science Building $1,200,000 $800,000 $800,000 $600,000 $2,200,000 $3,400,000

5 2 SUSLA New Orientation and Information Center $700,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $4,000,000 $4,700,000

6 3 2017 SUBR Renovation of Fisher Hall  - Biology / Ag                                             $3,000,000 $400,000 $2,000,000 $600,000 $2,600,000 $3,000,000

7 4 2017 SUBR Renovation of William James Hall-Physics                                            $3,000,000 $400,000 $2,000,000 $600,000 $2,600,000 $3,000,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

                                                                                            Total New Projects $0 $3,487,500 $10,033,000 $4,700,500 $1,600,000 $1,000,000 $17,333,500 $20,821,000

GRAND TOTAL ALL CATEGORIES $7,617,800 $50,582,500 $64,622,000 $29,460,500 $21,524,139 $18,804,861 $134,411,500 $192,611,800



S
y

st
em

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty

Campus Emergency Projects  Amount 

1 SUS

SU System Campuses Deferred Maintenance Projects: Conditions are hazardous to life and 

property, leaking roofs, plumbing, unsafe, HVAC/Elect. issues    $            17,500,000 

2 SUBR New Bridge for vehicle and pedestrian traffic.  $              7,000,000 

3 SUBR Replacement of Various Mechanical and Energy Management Control Systems  $              3,315,000 

4 SUNO University Center Air Handling Units - First Floor  $                 875,000 

5 SUSLA Install DDC HVAC Energy Management System Campus Wide  $              1,200,000 

6 SUBR Elevators Installation (ADA)  $              1,150,000 

7 SUNO ADA Compliance, Restrooms, Ramps, and Parking  $              4,850,000 

8 SUSLA Metro Campus Window Replacement  $              1,200,000 

9 SUBR Central Plant Mechanical System Upgrades  $                 650,000 

10 SUSLA ADA Compliance Projects  $                 945,000 

11 SUBR Roofing System Repairs  $              2,382,000 

12 SUNO Cafeteria Roof Replacement  $                 500,000 

13 SUSLA Install Guardrails in Library Lecture Hall & Science Building  $                 330,000 

14 SUBR Repair Sloughing of Ravine and Bluff  $              5,764,800 

15 SUAG Road Improvement with Erosion Repair HWY 61 at Experimental Station  $              2,500,000 

16 SUBR Mechanical and Plumbing System Upgrades  $              3,315,000 

16 SUNO Lake Campus Central Plant and Underground Piping  $              4,000,000 

18 SUBR Electrical Power/Lighting System Upgrades  $              2,925,000 

S
y

st
em

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty

Campus Self-Generated Projects (review Business Plan for each Project)  Amount 

1 SUSLA Student Outdoor Recreational Facility  $              1,000,000 

2 SULC Central Parking Garage  $            13,000,000 

3 SUBR A. W. Mumford Stadium Parking Garage  $            15,000,000 

4 SUSLA Metro Parking Garage  $            10,000,000 

5 SUSLA New Student Housing  $            11,800,000 

6 SUSLA Acquisition of Existing Housing  $            18,700,000 

S
y

st
em

 

P
ri

o
ri

t

y

Campus Continuing Projects  Amount 

1 SUBR T. T. Allain (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                                           $              1,010,000 

2 SUBR A. W. Mumford (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                                   $              7,900,000 

3 SUBR F. G. Clark Activity Center (Consent Decree) (ADA)                                  $              7,450,000 

4 SUBR SU Laboratory School Addition and Upgrades                                             $              6,000,000 

 Southern University and A&M College System

PRIORITIZED CAPITAL OUTLAY REQUEST

FY 2017-2018 THRU FY2021-2022



5 SUSLA Workforce Training Center                                                                               $              6,271,000 

6 SUBR Sewer and Street Improvements at Jesse Stone and E. C. Harrison  $                 770,000 

7 SUBR Information Center Building  $              2,000,000 

8 SUNO Student Life Center  $              8,500,000 

9 SUBR Replacement of Underground Fuel Tanks and Pumps  $                 500,000 

10 SUSLA H & R Building Elevator Addition  $                 300,000 

11 SUAG A. O. Williams Hall Renovation  $              1,188,000 

S
y

st
em

 

P
ri

o
ri

t

y

Campus New Projects  Amount 

1 SUBR Administration Building Window Replacement  $                 846,000 

2 SUNO Bashful Administration Building Air Handling Replacement - 2nd & 3rd Floors  $                 875,000 

3 SUBR Renovation of James Lee Hall / Health Research - Chemistry  $              5,000,000 

4 SUSLA Renovation of Collier Hall Science Building  $              3,400,000 

5 SUSLA New Orientation and Information Center  $              4,700,000 

6 SUBR Renovation of Fisher Hall  - Biology / Ag   $              3,000,000 

7 SUBR Renovation of William James Hall-Physics  $              3,000,000 



5 Year Capital Outlay Plan

Southern University and A&M College System
5 Year Capital Outlay Plan

FY 2017 - 2018  - FY 2021-2022

Campus Project Title

1st Yr. 

Requested

Inst. 

Priority

Funding 

Source 

**

Previous 

Funding FY17-18 FY18-19 FY19-20 FY20-21 FY21-22

5-Year 

Request

Total Cost          

(pf, fy17 to 21)

SUS

SU System Campuses Deferred Maintenance Projects: Conditions are hazardous to life 

and property, leaking roofs, plumbing, unsafe, HVAC/Elect. issues 
2017 E-1 G. O.

$7,500,000 $5,500,000 $4,500,000 $0 $0 $17,500,000 $17,500,000

SUBR New Bridge for vehicle and pedestrian traffic. 2017 E-2 G. O. $1,200,000 $5,000,000 $800,000 $7,000,000 $7,000,000

SUBR Replacement of Various Mechanical and Energy Management Control Systems 2017 E-3 G. O. $331,500 $2,983,500 $3,315,000 $3,315,000

SUNO University Center Air Handling Units - First Floor 2016 E-4 G. O. $87,500 $787,500 $875,000 $875,000

SUSLA Install DDC HVAC Energy Management System Campus Wide 2016 E-5 G. O. $120,000 $1,080,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

SUBR Elevators Installation (ADA) E-6 G. O. $350,000 $800,000 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

SUNO ADA Compliance, Restrooms, Ramps, and Parking 2016 E-7 G. O. $485,000 $2,182,500 $2,182,500 $4,850,000 $4,850,000

SUSLA Metro Campus Window Replacement       E-8 G. O. $1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

SUBR Central Plant Mechanical System Upgrades E-9 G. O. $350,000 $300,000 $650,000 $650,000

SUSLA ADA Compliance Projects 2013 E-10 G. O. $100,000 $845,000 $945,000 $945,000

SUBR Roofing System Repairs 2013 E-11 G. O. $350,000 $579,000 $559,000 $359,000 $535,000 $2,382,000 $2,382,000

SUNO Cafeteria Roof Replacement 2013 E-12 G. O. $100,000 $400,000 $500,000 $500,000

SUSLA Install Guardrails in Library Lecture Hall & Science Building E-13 G. O. $330,000 $330,000 $330,000

SUBR Repair Sloughing of Ravine and Bluff 2013 E-14 G. O. $64,800 $700,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $5,700,000 $5,764,800

SUAG Road Improvement with Erosion Repair HWY 61 at Experimental Station 2013 E-15 G. O. $250,000 $2,250,000 $2,500,000 $2,500,000

SUBR Mechanical and Plumbing System Upgrades 2014 E-16 G. O. $600,000 $370,000 $845,000 $1,500,000 $3,315,000 $3,315,000

SUNO Lake Campus Central Plant and Underground Piping 2013 E-17 G. O. $400,000 $3,600,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000

SUBR Electrical Power/Lighting System Upgrades 2012 E-18 G. O. $292,500 $2,632,500 $2,925,000 $2,925,000

SUSLA Student Outdoor Recreational Facility  2013 Self-Gen S G $100,000 $720,000 $180,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

SULC Central Parking Garage    2009 Self-Gen S G $1,200,000 $8,000,000 $3,500,000 $300,000 $13,000,000 $13,000,000

SUBR A. W. Mumford Stadium Parking Garage 2009 Self-Gen S G $1,500,000 $13,500,000 $15,000,000 $15,000,000

SUSLA Metro Parking Garage 2009 Self-Gen S G $1,000,000 $9,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

SUSLA New Student Housing 2012 Self-Gen S G $1,110,000 $3,920,139 $6,769,861 $11,800,000 $11,800,000

SUSLA Acquisition of Existing Housing 2012 Self-Gen S G $18,700,000 $18,700,000 $18,700,000

SUBR T. T. Allain (Consent Decree) (ADA) 2016 C-1 G. O. $1,010,000 $0 $1,010,000

SUBR A. W. Mumford (Consent Decree) (ADA) 2016 C-2 G. O. $1,400,000 $5,000,000 $1,500,000 $6,500,000 $7,900,000

SUBR F. G. Clark Activity Center (Consent Decree) (ADA) 2016 C-3 G. O. $3,600,000 $3,850,000 $3,850,000 $7,450,000



SUBR SU Laboratory School Addition and Upgrades C-4 G. O. $800,000 $3,500,000 $1,700,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000

SUSLA Workforce Training Center C-5 G. O. $246,000 $5,549,000 $476,000 $6,271,000 $6,271,000

SUBR Sewer and Street Improvements at Jesse Stone and E. C. Harrison C-6 G. O. $420,000 $350,000 $770,000 $770,000

SUBR Information Center Building C-7 G. O. $825,000 $1,175,000 $1,175,000 $2,000,000

SUNO Student Life Center C-8 G. O. $500,000 $500,000 $7,500,000 $8,000,000 $8,500,000

SUBR Replacement of Underground Fuel Tanks and Pumps C-9 G. O. $30,000 $470,000 $470,000 $500,000

SUSLA H & R Building Elevator Addition C-10 G. O. $30,000 $270,000 $300,000 $300,000

SUAG A. O. Williams Hall Renovation C-11 G. O. $188,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,188,000

SUBR Administration Building Window Replacement N-1 G. O. $445,500 $400,500 $846,000 $846,000

SUNO Bashful Administration Building Air Handling Replacement - 2nd & 3rd Floors N-2 G. O. $87,500 $787,500 $875,000 $875,000

SUBR Renovation of James Lee Hall / Health Research - Chemistry  $5,000,000 N-3 G. O. $700,000 $3,000,000 $1,300,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000

SUSLA Renovation of Collier Hall Science Building N-4 G. O. $1,200,000 $800,000 $800,000 $600,000 $3,400,000 $3,400,000

SUSLA New Orientation and Information Center N-5 G. O. $700,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $4,700,000 $4,700,000

SUBR Renovation of Fisher Hall  - Biology / Ag  N-6 G. O. $400,000 $2,000,000 $600,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000

SUBR Renovation of William James Hall-Physics N-7 G. O. $400,000 $2,000,000 $600,000 $3,000,000 $3,000,000

Total $7,617,800 $50,582,500 $64,622,000 $29,460,500 $21,524,139 $18,804,861 $184,994,000 $192,611,800

*Add lines where needed.  LEGEND: E (Emergency), C (Continuing), N (New)                              

G.O. (GO Bonds)

**Change Funding Source Where Necessary



Southern University System 
Office of Facilities Planning  
 

September 22, 2016 8:30 am 

 

SYSTEM FACILITIES PROJECT UPDATES 

 SU Baton Rouge 

1. SU Laboratory School new window wall, American Disability Act (ADA) new restrooms and 

ramp 

 Architect: Domain Design  

 Pre-design meeting: June 26, 2013. 

 Available Funds for Construction (AFC): $960,000.00. 

 Project involves installation of new window wall system, ADA restrooms, new entry 

doors and ADA ramps.  

 Bid amount $741,000. 

 General Contractor (GC) - HVACR Systems LLC  

 Preconstruction meeting - April 9, 2015.  

 Punch list completion set for October 2016  

 

2. F.G. Clark Activity Center Fire Code Citations Renovations 

 Architect – Domain Design 

 Available Funds for Construction (AFC) $418,000  

 General Contractor- MBD Maintenance, LLC 

 Bid amount $301,000 

 Construction started April 2015 

 Project completion set for February, 2016. 

 Punch list completion set for October 2016 

 

3. Fire Alarm System  upgrade for various buildings 

 Pending Budget AFC approval from the State in the amount of $700,000 

 Designer Mel Engineering $57,550 

 Construction Documents completed Dec 2015 

 Funding in the amount of $700,000 is pending State’s approval 

Notes: 

J B Cade Library AFC $240,000 +- was approved 13June2016, FP&C will send project 

out for bids (Mr. K. Clark of FP&C). 

 J B Cade Library - Advertisement for bids set for October 2016 

 Completion timeline set for February 2017 

 

4. Hurricane Gustav repairs for various buildings 

 Office of Risk Management (ORM) AFC Budget approved by ORM and FP&C 

 FP&C and SUBR sending projects out for Bid Advertisement – in progress. 

 Wallace Bradford Hall, open bids Aug 31, 2016 and Notice to Proceed September 30, 

2016 with a 180 Consecutive Calendar Days to complete the project (Oct 2016 to March 

2017) – AFC $216,839.00 – Designer: Jerry Campbell & Associates 225.381.9435 

o General Contractor- ADMK Construction 

o Bid amount $149,800 



 Collections & Receivables / Lottie Anthony, open bids Aug 30, 2016 and Notice to 

Proceed September 30, 2016 with a 270 Consecutive Calendar Days to complete the 

project (Oct 2016 to June 2017) – AFC $121,834.00 (Abatement work is involved in this 

project) – Designer: Jerry Campbell & Associates 225.381.9435 

o General Contractor- Honore Companies, LLC 

o Bid amount $126,000  

 Remaining projects in progress with the State Office of Risk Management and SUBR 

Physical Plant Department for bid advertisement.  

 

5. Disaster event Dec 8-11, 2015: Mississippi River Flooding / sloughing off of the Ravine and 

Bluff, various locations 

 Pending assessment review report by GOHSEP, ORM & FEMA to fund the project. 

  

6. Disaster event March 2015: Severe Weather / sloughing off of the Ravine and Bluff various 

locations 

 Pending assessment review report by GOHSEP, ORM & FEMA to fund the project 

 Met with Mr. Chris Herring of Board of Regents and Mr. Honore/Structural Engineer 

Aug 2016 for a site visit to review site erosion, soil detachment failure to establish budget 

cost for repairs.  

 

7. Disaster event August 12, 2016: Severe Weather / Flooding 

 SUBR, SULC & SUAGC assessment report - no major damage was reported 

 Assessment report is pending from SUBR Physical Plant and SUBR ORM of any 

additional sloughing off / soil detachment that may have cause additional failure to roads, 

bridge and sidewalks.  Inspections of underground and above ground utilities 

infrastructure in progress. 

 Mr. Chris Herring of Board of Regents Aug 2016 met w/ Stephen Losavio of FP&C to 

review budget cost and establish timelines of completion for utilities infrastructure 

repairs. 

 

  

8. Frank Hayden Theater lighting upgrade 

 AFC: Title 3 funding $220,000 

 Designer: Daniel Calongne Engineers  

 General Contractor: Rex A. Hymel Company  

 Bid amount: $189,854 

 Pre-construction meeting: May 26, 2016. 

 Completion date: September 30, 2016 

SU New Orleans    

1. Natural Science Building 

 Architect Selections were made on Wednesday, May 15, 2013. 

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 

 Architects: Sizzler Thompson Brown – Awarded Natural Science Building. 

Science building will change from 3 to 4 stories to house Science, Sch. of Nursing, Math, 

Physics, Health Information Management Systems, Biology, Chemistry and Forensic 

Science. It will consist of a total of 107,435 sq. ft. and will be located on the Park 

Campus. Construction Document Phase complete. Budget increased to $27,750,000. 



 Bid Advertisement: September 2016 

 Bid Opening set for October 11, 2016 

 Construction will take 18 months June 2018 

 

2. New Education and Human Development Building (lake campus) 

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 

 Verges Rome Architects – Awarded Education and Human Development Building, 

This building will be two stories in height and have a total of 49,114 square feet. 

Project will be located on the Lake Campus. Construction Documents 95% complete. 

Cost of the project is budgeted at $11, 608,000.  

 Bid Advertisement: pending for January 2017 

 Construction will take 18 months 

 

3. Arts & Humanities and Social Science Building 

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 

 Chasm + Fusion Architects – Awarded Arts & Humanities and Social Science Bldg. 

Project will be located on the Park Campus. Building will consist of a three story office 

and lab wing with the auditorium and proscenium tower extending to nearly five stories. 

The building will have 70,640 square feet. Estimated cost of the project is $21,200,000. 

 Construction Bid Documents completed: March 2016  

 Bid Advertisement: September 2016 

 Bid Opening set for October 18, 2016 

 Construction will take 18 months 

  

 

4. School of Social Work 

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 

 Architect: Waggoner & Ball Architects  

   AFC budget is $10, 257,000 

 Pre-bid meeting scheduled for October 15, 2015 

 General Contractor:  Lamar Contractors LLC 

 Bid amount: $9,910,000 

 Construction has started: November 2015 

 May 26, 2016 Great progress with site and foundation work  

 Completion scheduled for August 2017 

 

 

5. Demolitions  

 Central Plant Building – To be demolished in Fall Semester 2016. Resolution complete. 

FEMA considered building more than 51% damaged by storm and build a new central 

plant building 

 Existing “New” Science Building - To be demolished after construction of the new 

Natural Science. 

 Brown Building (“Old” Science Building) – To be demolished after construction of the 

new Natural Science Building. 

 

6. SUNO New Central Plant Building  

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 



 Sq. Ft: 8100 

 AFC: $8,648,799.47 

 Designer: AST Engineers 225-926-5600 Mr. Kirk J. Simoneaux, P.E. 

 Bid date:  04/12/2016 

 Low Bid amount: $ 6,097,000 

 General Contractor: Gallo Mechanical  

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed Date: 05/16/2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 365 days 

 May 26, 0216 progress meeting – need to work out asbestos removal details w/ FP&C, 

test piles installed, site work in progress. 

 Construction project completion date: 05/16/2017 

 

7. SUNO Site Restoration – Temporary FEMA trailers (Lake Campus), Phase 1 of 2 

 FP&C project manager: Mr. David Van Alstine 504 568 2414 

 Site work new/repairs parking, utilities upgrades: overhead electrical lines and power 

poles removal, storm water drainage, sewer lines, water lines.   

 AFC: $2,154,846 

 Designer: All South Consulting Engineers, LLC of Metairie, LA 

 Advertised for bids: June 29, 2016  

 Bid date: August 4, 2016 

 Bid amount: $1,320,916.00 

 General Contractor: Durr Heavy Construction, LLC (lic. No. 4674) 

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed Date: 08/ 19 /2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 120 days 

 Construction project completion date: January 18, 2017 

 

8. SUNO L. Washington Memorial Library HVAC Replacement 

 FP&C project manager: Ms. Jean Kelly 504-568-8547 

 Sq. Ft:  

 AFC: $419,540 

 Designer: Lucien T. Vivien, Jr. & Associates  504-218-5409 

 Advertisement for Bids: June 9, 2016 

 Pre-Bid Conference: July 12, 2016 

 Bid date:  Wednesday, July 20, 2016 

 Bid amount: $234,600 

 General Contractor: Gallo Mechanical 

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed Date: August 29, 2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 180 days 

 Construction project completion date: Feb 26, 2017 

SU Shreveport 

1. SUSLA Science and General / Classroom Building - Main Campus 

 FP&C project manager: Charles Robinson 318-676-7984 or 318-469-6658 cell 

 FP&C Funding of $6,300,000 available to begin the New Classroom Building. 

 Architect: KSA Alliance 

 Project bid October 8, 2014, 

 General Contractor: ELA Group, Inc. 



 Bid amount: $6,287,000 

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed Date: February 11, 2015. 

 Construction project completion date: September 2016/Dec 2016 

 

2. Renovation to Allen Building School of Nursing - 600 Texas Street, Shreveport, LA 

(Downtown) 

 FP&C project manager: Charles Robinson 318-676-7984 or 318-469-6658 cell 

 Project No. : 19-618-07S-01, Part 01 – State ID S28020 – Site Code: 7-09-025 

 AFC: $3,500,000 

 Architects: KSA Alliance, Inc.  

 Bid date: April 19, 2016 

 General Contractor: ELA Group, Inc. 

 Bid amount: $3,350,000 base bid 

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed Date: September 12, 2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 420 days / November 7, 2017 

 Construction project completion date set for: November 7, 2017 

 

Notes: Funding required for Furnishing and Equipment (F&E)  

 

3. SUSLA Learning Center / Daycare - 3050 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive Bldg N 

 Funding source: one time State funding 

 Budget amount: $900,000 

 FP&C project manager: None (Small Capital Project) 

 Designer: Bills & Partners – fees  

 AFC:  

 Bid date: 11/05/2014 

 General Contractor: Whitlock & Shelton 

 Bid amount: $801,800 

 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed date: 3/24/2015 / 4/01/2015 

 Duration time to complete the project: 180 days 

 Construction project completion date: August 28, 2016 – January 2017 

 

SU Law Center 

1. SULC Reroofing project 

 Budget cost $486,000 AFC (University $384,000 & Major Repairs $112,000 funds)  

 Asbestos and Moisture testing of existing roof has been completed $23,000 

 Williams and Williams Architecture LLC is preparing final bid construction documents 

29April2016 $59,200 

 FP&C - Architect has reviewed construction documents and completed Code review 

 Advertised for bids: May 2016 

 Pre-bid June 7, 2016 (120 days to complete project) 

 $112,000 + -  was approved 13June2016 by the State (FP&C) to add into the project 

budget  

 Bid opening July 2016 

 General Contractor: CAMCO, LLC 

 Bid amount: $453,900 



 Executed Contract/Notice to proceed date: September 27, 2016 

 Pre-Construction meeting: September 27, 2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 120 days 

 Construction completion date: January 2017 

SU Ag Center 

1. Horticulture Storage Building Renovations – SUAG main campus 

 Budget: $291,046  

 Williams and Williams Architecture designer fee $27,000 

 AFC: $263,400 

 Bid amount: $263,000 

 General Contractor: Thornville Services  

 Pre-construction meeting is scheduled for 5/5/2016 (180 days to complete project) 

 Construction project completion date: November 2016 

 

2. New Equipment Storage Building– SUAG main campus 

 Budget: $90,000 

 Architect – Byron J. Stewart & Associates designer fees $12,600 

 AFC: $77,400 

 Construction Bid Documents: pending completion October 2016 

 Bid Advertisement: November 2016 

 Duration time to complete the project: 120 days 

 Construction completion date: March 2017 

 

3. New Pesticide Storage Building Shed – SUAG Experimental Lab Farm 

 Budget: $242,522 

 Architect:  Williams and Williams Architecture - designer fees $25,400 

 AFC: $217,122 

 Construction bid documents:  90% completed  

o Soil Data and Site Survey - pending 

 

 

 

4. A.O. Williams Hall Renovation 

 FP&C project manager: Tony Palotta 225.342.0827 

 Budget amount is $2,764,630 

 Project was awarded to Engineer – Quebedeaux Engineers / Architect – Crump Wilson 

and Associates  

 Estimated cost is approximately $2,300,000.00 

 Design phase started 4/27/2016  

 Construction bid documents: November 2016 

 Bid date: January 2017  

 

5. Multipurpose Building, Agriculture Research & Extension Center at the Experimental Lab 

Farm/North Campus 

 FP&C project manager: Stephen Losavio 225-342-0832 

 Waiting on FP&C to have the building re-designed within the AFC budget of $1,300,000 and 

Fee $74,018. 

 LA Architectural Selection Board: September 22, 2016 

 Designer selected by the LAAS Board: Domain Architecture 

 Planning/Construction Document Phase: 



 

 

 

 

Prepared By: Eli G. Guillory III 

  Interim Director 

  Southern University System 

  Office of Facilities Planning 

  225-771-2786 office   225-573-0811 cell 

   

 

Tracie Woods JD, GC  SUS  225-771-2211 

Cedric Upshaw JD, ADA SUS  225-771-5565 

Benjamin Pugh, VC  SUBR  225-771-5021 

Henry L. Thurman III   SUBR   225-771-2413 

  Kestee Weir III    SUBR  225-771-6235 

Terry Hall, VC   SULC  225-771-2506 

Angela Gaines   SULC  225-771-4931 

Lynda M. Batiste, VC   SUAG     225-771-5707 

James L. Mahomes  SUAG  225-771-2242 

Jullin Renthropoe, VC   SUNO  504-286-5117 

Shaun Lewis    SUNO  504-286-5295 

  Brandy Jacobsen, VC   SUSLA  318-670-9371 

  Joseph LaCour Jr.   SUSLA  318-670-9377 

Janice Sneed, VC  SUSLA  318-670-9471 

   



Finance Committee 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Call to Order and Invocation 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

4. Public Comments 

 
5. Action Item: 

A. Request Approval of Revised Tenured Faculty Retirement Incentive Plan and New 

Unclassified Employees Retirement Incentive Plan, SULC 

 

B. Request Approval of Testing Fee for Aviation Program Students, SUSLA 

 

C. BA-7 #2 - Restoration of FY17 GRAD Act Funds 

 

D. BA-7 #3 - Allocation of FY17 One-time Funds 

6. Informational Item: 

A. Interim Financial Report as of August, 2016 

 

7. Other Business 

 

8. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS 

Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Chair, Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Vice Chair, 

Atty. Tony Clayton, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. Darren Mire 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 



















































































Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $10,923,969  $32,771,909  $43,695,878  $43,695,878 25.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated  -00  4,965,616 4,965,616  4,965,616 0.0% 0

Funds Due From BOR

Federal  577,954  3,076,255  3,654,209  3,654,209 15.8% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016  29,904,762  332,708 30,237,470  31,412,499 95.2% (1,175,029)

    Tuition - Spring 2017  -00  29,284,974 29,284,974  29,494,436 0.0% (209,462)

    Tuition - Summer  616,686  3,182,497 3,799,183  3,527,077 17.5% 272,106

    Out-of-State Fees  4,073,478  3,689,232 7,762,710  7,303,013 55.8% 459,697

    Other  2,332,665  8,517,362 10,850,027  10,850,027 21.5% 0

InterAgency Transfer  -00  3,375,199 3,375,199  3,375,199 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $48,429,514  $89,195,752  $137,625,266  $138,277,954 35.0% ($652,688)

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $9,275,930  $56,761,950  $66,037,879  $66,473,566 14.0%  $(435,687)

  Other Compensation  13,917  285,060 298,977  298,977 4.7% 0

  Related Benefits  3,297,618  26,075,175 29,372,793  29,520,971 11.2%  (148,178)

Total Personal Services  $12,587,465  $83,122,184  $95,709,649  $96,293,514 13.1%  $(583,865)

Travel  $28,852  $837,587  $866,439  $866,439 3.3% $0

  Operating Services  1,916,638  12,198,970 14,115,608  14,115,608 13.6%  -00 

  Supplies  72,104  1,631,661 1,703,765  1,740,213 4.1% (36,448)

Total Operating Expenses  $1,988,742  $13,830,631  $15,819,373  $15,855,821 12.5%  $(36,448)

  Professional Services  37,501  1,634,925 1,672,426  1,672,426 2.2% 0

  Other Charges  178,610  10,783,381 10,961,991  10,961,991 1.6% 0

  Debt Services 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 5,953,057 5,953,057 5,985,432 0.0% (32,375)

Total Other Charges  $216,111  $18,371,363  $18,587,474  $18,619,849 1.2% ($32,375)

  General Acquisitions 1,911 1,640,259 387,346  387,346 0.5% 0

  Library Acquisitions 2,719 596,744 437,649  437,649 0.6% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0  0.00 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $4,630  $2,237,003  $824,995  $824,995 0.6% $0

Scholarships  $2,689,295  $3,127,824  $5,817,119  $5,817,119 46.2% $0

Total Expenditures  $17,515,095  $121,526,592  $137,625,050  $138,277,737 12.7%  $(652,687)

Southern University System

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

1



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $1,483,531  $5,291,305  $6,774,836  $6,774,836 21.9% 0

Statutory Dedicated 0 0

Funds Due To/ From Mgmt 

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016

    Tuition - Spring 2017

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $1,483,531  $5,291,305  $6,774,836  $6,774,836 21.9% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $160,167  $987,638  $1,147,805  $1,147,805 14.0% 0

  Other Compensation 8,667 43,333 52,000 52,000 16.7% 0

  Related Benefits 50,305 579,617 629,922 629,922 8.0% 0

Total Personal Services  $219,139  $1,610,588  $1,829,727  $1,829,727 12.0% $0

Travel  $5,533  $133,467  $139,000  $139,000 4.0% $0

  Operating Services 6,561 131,102 137,663 137,663 4.8% 0

  Supplies 242 73,041 73,283 73,283 0.3% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $6,803  $204,143  $210,946  $210,946 3.2% $0

  Professional Services 0 44,500 44,500 44,500 0.0% 0

  Other Charges 0 4,501,663 4,501,663 4,501,663 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $-00  $4,546,163  $4,546,163  $4,546,163 0.0% $0

  General Acquisitions 0 49,000 49,000 49,000 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs 0 49,000 49,000 49,000 0.0% $0

Scholarships 0 0  -00 0 0.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $231,475  $6,543,361  $6,774,836  $6,774,836 3.4% $0

Southern University Board and System Administration

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

2



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct $4,736,942 $13,210,825  $17,947,767  $17,947,767 26.4% 0

Statutory Dedicated 0 1,961,409  1,961,409  1,961,409 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR

Federal

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016 17,251,075 0  17,251,075  17,850,144 96.6%  $(599,069)

    Tuition - Spring 2017 0 16,652,085  16,652,085  16,652,085 0.0% 0

    Tuition - Summer 0 2,257,077  2,257,077  2,257,077 0.0% 0

    Out-of-State Fees 2,482,049 2,327,994  4,810,043  4,810,043 51.6% 0

    Other 1,972,020 7,058,594  9,030,614  9,030,614 21.8% 0

InterAgency Transfer 0 3,375,199  3,375,199  3,375,199 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $26,442,086  $46,843,183  $73,285,269  $73,884,338 35.8% ($599,069)

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries $4,944,849 $29,871,868  $34,816,716  $35,252,403 14.0% (435,687)

  Other Compensation 0 213,477  213,477  213,477 0.0% 0

  Related Benefits 1,765,172 14,309,188  16,074,360  16,237,742 10.9% (163,382)

Total Personal Services  $6,710,021  $44,394,532  $51,104,553  $51,703,622 13.0% ($599,069)

 Travel $4,379  $222,621  $227,000  $227,000 1.9% $0

  Operating Services 1,132,531 6,322,130  7,454,661  7,454,661 15.2% 0

  Supplies 50,084 851,477  901,561  901,561 5.6% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $1,182,615  $7,173,607  $8,356,222  $8,356,222 20.7% $0

  Professional Services 15,341 792,656  807,997  807,997 1.9% 0

  Other Charges 69,080 3,421,091  3,490,171  3,490,171 2.0% 0

  Debt Services 0 0 0.0%

  Interagency Transfers 0 3,633,276  3,633,276  3,633,276 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $84,421  $7,847,023  $7,931,444  $7,931,444 1.1% $0

  General Acquisitions 161 43,371  43,532  43,532 0.4% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0 137,649  137,649  137,649 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $161  $181,020  $181,181  $181,181 0.1% $0

Scholarships $2,569,385  $2,915,484  $5,484,869  $5,484,869 46.8% $0

Total Expenditures  $10,550,981  $62,734,287  $73,285,269  $73,884,338 14.3% ($599,069)

Southern University - Baton Rouge 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

3



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $853,361  $2,560,083  $3,413,444  $3,413,444 25.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated  214,129  214,129  214,129 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Federal 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016 $3,052,899 332,708  3,385,607  3,385,607 90.2% 0

    Tuition - Spring 2017 $0  3,134,362  3,134,362  3,134,362 0.0% 0

    Tuition - Summer $249,580  450,420  700,000  700,000 35.7% 0

    Out-of-State Fees $617,130  664,364  1,281,494  1,281,494 48.2% 0

    Other $310,800  261,584  572,384  572,384 54.3% 0

InterAgency Transfer 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $5,083,770  $7,617,650  $12,701,420  $12,701,420 40.0% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  930,735  5,781,379  6,712,114  6,712,114 13.9% 0

  Other Compensation $0 0  -00 0 0.0%

  Related Benefits  301,931  2,182,294  2,484,225  2,484,225 12.2% 0

 Total Personal Services  $1,232,666  $7,963,673  $9,196,340  $9,196,339 13.4% $0

 Travel $2,634  $147,366  $150,000  $150,000 1.8% $0

  Operating Services  54,044 1,553,709  1,607,753  1,607,753 3.4% 0

  Supplies 100,000  100,000  100,000 0.0% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $54,044  $1,653,709  $1,707,753  $1,707,753 3.2% $0

  Professional Services 0 605,291  605,291  605,291 0.0% 0

  Other Charges 0 249,823  249,823  249,823 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 262,214  262,214  262,214 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $-00  $1,117,328  $1,117,328  $1,117,328 0.0% $0

  General Acquisitions  $-00  $-00  -00 0 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions $2,719 297,281  300,000  300,000 0.9% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0  -00 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $2,719  $297,281  $300,000  $300,000 0.9% $0

Scholarships $117,660  $112,340  $230,000  $230,000 51.2% $0

Total Expenditures  $1,409,723  $11,291,697  $12,701,420  $12,701,420 11.1% $0

   

Southern University Law Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

4



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $1,611,007  $4,992,311  $6,603,318  $6,603,318 24.4% 0

Statutory Dedicated 610,645 610,645 610,645 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0 0 0 0

Federal 0 0 0 0
Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016 5,881,017 0  $5,881,017 6,234,870 94.3% (353,853)

    Tuition - Spring 2017 0 5,967,599 5,967,599 5,967,599 0.0% 0

    Tuition - Summer 300,000 300,000 300,000 0.0% 0

    Out-of-State Fees 368,356 296,973 665,329 311,476 118.3% 353,853

    Other 26,070 814,172 840,242 840,242 3.1% 0

InterAgency Transfer 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues  $7,886,450  $12,981,700  $20,868,150  $20,868,150 37.8%  -00 

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $1,573,629  $9,348,475  $10,922,104  $10,922,104 14.4% 0

  Other Compensation  

  Related Benefits 524,592 4,389,774 4,914,366 4,914,366 10.7% 0

Total Personal Services 2,098,221 13,738,249 15,836,470 15,836,470 13.2% $0

Travel $50 $151,450 151,500 $151,500 0.0% $0

  Operating Services 193,815 2,126,879 2,320,694 2,320,694 8.4% 0

  Supplies 13,157 355,343 368,500 368,500 3.6% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $206,972  $2,482,222  $2,689,194  $2,689,194 7.7% $0

  Professional Services 2,000 150,000 152,000 152,000 1.3% 0

  Other Charges 83,206 1,414,346 1,497,552 1,497,552 5.6% 0

  Debt Services 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 416,434 416,434 416,434 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $85,206  $1,980,780  $2,065,986  $2,065,986 4.1% $0

  General Acquisitions 125,000 125,000 125,000 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0 0.0% 0

  Major Repairs 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs $0 $0 $125,000 $125,000 0.0% $0

Scholarships $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $2,390,449  $18,352,701  $20,868,150  $20,868,150 11.5% $0

Southern University at New Orleans

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

5



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $1,403,509  $4,210,527  $5,614,036  $5,614,036 25.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 200,658 200,658 200,658 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0 0

Federal 0 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016 3,719,771 0 3,719,771 3,941,878 94.4% (222,107)

    Tuition - Spring 2017 0 3,530,928 3,530,928 3,740,390 0.0% (209,462)

    Tuition - Summer 367,106 175,000 542,106 270,000 136.0% 272,106

    Out-of-State Fees 605,943 399,901 1,005,844 900,000 67.3% 105,844

    Other 23,775 383,012 406,787 406,787 5.8% 0

InterAgency Transfer 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0

Total Revenues  $6,120,104  $8,900,026  $15,020,130  $15,073,749 40.6%  $(53,619)

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $1,035,421  $7,064,979 8,100,400  $8,100,400 12.8% $0

  Other Compensation

  Related Benefits 427,255 2,884,546 3,311,801 3,296,597 13.0% 15,204

Total Personal Services  $1,462,676  $9,949,525  $11,412,201  $11,396,997 12.8% $15,204

Travel  $-00  $43,700  $43,700  $43,700 0.0% $0

  Operating Services 299,408 1,502,656 1,802,064 1,802,064 16.6% 0

  Supplies 7,966 136,067 144,033 180,481 4.4% (36,448)

Total Operating Expenses  $307,374  $1,638,723  $1,946,097  $1,982,545 15.5% ($36,448)

  Professional Services 18,410 22,590 41,000 41,000 44.9% 0

  Other Charges 26,324 701,458 727,782 727,782 3.6% 0

  Debt Services 0 0 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 741,133 741,133 773,508 0% (32,375)

Total Other Charges  $44,734  $1,465,181  $1,509,915  $1,542,290 2.9% ($32,375)

  General Acquisitions 0 8,000 8,000 8,000 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0 0 0.0%

  Major Repairs 0 0 0 0.0%

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $-00  $8,000  $8,000  $8,000 0.0% $0

Scholarships  $-00  $100,000  $100,000  $100,000 0.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $1,814,784  $13,205,129  $15,019,913  $15,073,532 12.0%  $(53,619)

Southern University at Shreveport 

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

6



Actual as of Total Budget Actual as Over (Under)

8/31/2016 Projected FY 2016-17 as of 7/1/2016 % of Budget Budget

Revenues

General Fund Direct  $835,619  $2,506,858  $3,342,477  $3,342,477 25.0% 0

Statutory Dedicated 1,978,775  $1,978,775 1,978,775 0.0% 0

Funds Due From Mgmt or BOR 0

Federal 577,954 3,076,255  $3,654,209 3,654,209 15.8% 0

Self Generated

    Tuition - Fall 2016

    Tuition - Spring 2017

    Tuition - Summer

    Out-of-State Fees

    Other

InterAgency Transfer

Total Revenues  $1,413,573  $7,561,888  $8,975,461  $8,975,461 15.7% $0

Expenditures by Object

  Salaries  $631,129  $3,707,611  $4,338,740  $4,338,740 14.5% 0

  Other Compensation 5,250 28,250  $33,500 33,500 15.7% 0

  Related Benefits 228,363 1,729,756  $1,958,119 1,958,119 11.7% 0

Total Personal Services  $864,742  $5,465,617  $6,330,359 6,330,359 13.7% $0

Travel  $16,256  $138,983  $155,239  $155,239 10.5% 0

  Operating Services 230,279 562,494 792,773 792,773 29.0% 0

  Supplies 655 115,733 116,388 116,388 0.6% 0

Total Operating Expenses  $230,934  $678,227  $909,161  $909,161 25.4% $0

  Professional Services 1,750 19,888  $21,638 21,638 8.1% 0

  Other Charges 0 495,000  $495,000 495,000 0.0% 0

  Debt Services 0 0  $-00 0 0.0% 0

  Interagency Transfers 0 900,000  $900,000 900,000 0.0% 0

Total Other Charges  $1,750  $1,414,888  $1,416,638  $1,416,638 0.1% $0

  General Acquisitions 0 161,814  $161,814 161,814 0.0% 0

  Library Acquisitions 0 0  $-00 0 0.0%

  Major Repairs 0 0  $-00 0 0.0%

Total Acquist. & Major Repairs  $-00  $161,814  $161,814  $161,814 0.0% $0

Scholarships  $2,250  $-00  $2,250  $2,250 100.0% $0

Total Expenditures  $1,115,932  $7,859,529  $8,975,461  $8,975,461 12.4% $0

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center

Comparison of Actual Expenditures to Budgeted Amounts

For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

As of  August 31, 2016

7



Personnel Affairs 

Committee 



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
(Following the Finance Committee) 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 
 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order and Invocation 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 

 

4. Public Comments 

 

5. Action Items: 

 

A. Request Approval of Revised Tenured Faculty Retirement Incentive Plan and New 

Unclassified Employees Retirement Incentive Plan, SULC 

 

B. Personnel Actions greater than $60,000 

 

Name Position/Campus Salary 

NEW APPOINTMENTS/REPLACEMENTS 

1. Nadia Washington Seals Pre K-5th Grade Assistant Principal, SU Laboratory School 
New Appointment, SUBR 

 
$65,000 

2. Jalyn Davis Jones 6-12th Grade Assistant Principal, SU Laboratory School 
New Appointment, SUBR $65,000 

3. Anissa Stover Assistant Professor, School of Nursing 
New Appointment, SUBR $65,000 

4. Eli Guillory Director of Facilities Planning 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUS $80,000 

5. Barbara Robertson Interagency Coordinator and Administrative Accountant 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUS $60,500 

SALARY ADJUSTMENT per SUSON Retention Plan 

6. Vinnie Marcell 
 

Associate Professor/School of Nursing 
Salary Adjustment, SUBR 

$86,667 

 

 

C. Request Approval of Sabbatical Leave for Guang-Lin Zhao, Spring Semester 2017, SUBR 

 

D. Request Approval of Extended Sick Leave for Etta Dunn, August 10, 2016 to May 10, 2017, 

(With Pay), SUBR 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 

Personnel Affairs Committee Agenda 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

E. Request Approval of Medical Leaves of Absence (FMLA)

1. Rosalynn Thyssen, Assistant Professor, School of Nursing, SUBR

(August 15, 2016 – December 16, 2016)

2. Melissa Waters, Professor, College of Business, SUBR

(August 22, 2016 – January 1, 2017

F. Request Approval of Employment Contract for Dr. Bobby R. Phills, Chancellor-Dean, SU 
Agricultural Research and Extension Center/College of Agriculture

(Executive Session may be required) 

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Atty. Patrick D. Magee, Chair, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Vice Chair, 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Atty. Tony M. Clayton, Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr. 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 







































































































































Revised  

Executive Summary  

For  

Dr. Bobby R. Phills 

Chancellor-Dean 

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center  

 

 

REVISED BENCHMARKS: 

 
1. Improve the overall graduation rate at SUBR College of Agriculture from the base 

year of 2016-2017. 

 

2. Increase the enrollment and retention rate for the SUBR College of Agriculture from 

the base year of 2016-2017. 

 

 

3. Demonstrate significant evidence of the establishment and advancement of the 

Medicinal Plant Research and Development with special emphasis on the 

development of the marijuana program from “seed to sell” in accordance with the 

Louisiana Legislation, state and federal guidelines. 

 

4. Develop effective funding-raising strategies, (i.e. corporate and foundation donations, 

federal and state grants and contracts) leading to the enhancement of the Land-grant 

campus physical plant and the procurement of essential resources for the training and 

enhancement of faculty and staff professional development. 

 
 

5. Re-establish and upgrade multiple phases of the BAYOU youth development programs 

leading to significant recruitment and training of K-20 students within the Land-grant 

campus and throughout the University system. 
 

6. Improve seamless operations between SUAREC and the College of Agriculture as 

demonstrated by stabilization of faculty/staff composition and morale-promoting 

activities. 

 

 

All other terms remain the same. 

 

 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

The Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College 

(Board) hereby extends as Chancellor-Dean of Southern University Agricultural Research and 

Extension Center (SUAREC) and Dean of the College of Agriculture at Southern University Baton 

Rouge (SUBR), Bobby R. Phills, and (Chancellor-Dean) who hereby accepts the following terms 

of employment.  

TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

The employment established in this Agreement is for an initial term of three (3) years and three (3) 

months, commencing on September 1, 2016 and ending on December 31, 2019.  

The Board affirms the Chancellor-Dean ’s initial appointment as a full professor with tenure at the 

SUBR School of Agriculture.  The Chancellor-Dean will be tenured in the department that meets 

SAACS credentialing requirements.   

DUTIES AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 

The Chancellor-Dean shall report and be responsible to the Board through the System President as 

required in the Board’s by-laws.   

The Chancellor-Dean ’s employment shall be subject to all other rules, orders and regulations 

established and adopted by the Board, as amended from time to time except as such rules, orders 

and regulations conflict with the express terms of this Agreement.  

The Chancellor-Dean shall comply with all other laws and regulations applicable to his specific 

office and public officials.  

The Chancellor-Dean will be subject to an annual review by the System President to be conducted 

in a manner and by a procedure determined by the System President. The President along with the 

Chancellor-Dean will establish performance goals. The goals and objectives will be the basis for 

his performance review for the three (3) years of the Agreement and any extensions thereof.   

COMPENSATION 

The Chancellor-Dean shall be paid an annual salary of two hundred and fifteen thousand dollars 

($215,000.00) for the term of this Agreement as compensation for his services while serving as 

Chancellor-Dean.  This annual salary will be paid in the form of equal monthly installments no 

later than the last calendar day of each month in accordance with SUS’s payroll procedures.  



The Chancellor-Dean shall receive a housing allowance of thirty-five thousand dollars 

($35,000.00) annually and an automobile allowance of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) 

annually, which shall be paid in the form of equal monthly installments no later than the last 

calendar day of each month in accordance with SUS’s payroll procedures.   

The Chancellor-Dean will be eligible to participate in the benefits plans for health, insurance, 

retirement and any other benefits that are available for full time administrative employees.   

The Chancellor-Dean will be required to meet the following benchmarks annually. The President 

through the Board has the discretion and the decision to provide incentive compensation to the 

Chancellor-Dean based on the following benchmarks. The benchmarks are as follows:   

1. Improve the overall graduation rate at SUBR College of Agriculture from the base

year of 2016-2017.

2. Increase the enrollment and retention rate for the SUBR College of Agriculture from

the base year of 2016-2017.

3. Demonstrate significant evidence of the establishment and advancement of the

Medicinal Plant Research and Development with special emphasis on the

development of the marijuana program from “seed to sell” in accordance with the

Louisiana Legislation, state and federal guidelines.

4. Develop effective funding-raising strategies, (i.e. corporate and foundation donations,

federal and state grants and contracts) leading to the enhancement of the Land-grant

campus physical plant and the procurement of essential resources for the training and

enhancement of faculty and staff professional development.

5. Re-establish and upgrade multiple phases of the BAYOU youth development

programs leading to significant recruitment and training of K-20 students within the

Land-grant campus and throughout the University system.

6. Improve seamless operations between SUAREC and the College of Agriculture as

demonstrated by stabilization of faculty/staff composition and morale-promoting

activities.



Termination Without Cause  

The Chancellor-Dean may be terminated without cause at the recommendation of the System 

President with approval of the Board.  If the Chancellor-Dean is terminated without cause, he shall 

have the right to select an option as stated herein. If the Chancellor-Dean is terminated without 

cause and elects to become a full-time professor, he shall be entitled to eighty percent (80%) of his 

salary that he would have received as Chancellor-Dean for the balance of the initial term of this 

Agreement.     

The Chancellor-Dean, upon termination as Chancellor-Dean without cause, shall have the right to: 

(a) remain at SUBR and assume the position of full professor with tenure at SUBR or such other 
campus as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties or (b) he may elect to leave SUBR.  For 
purposes of this paragraph, the Chancellor-Dean shall receive eighty percent (80%) of his salary 
for the balance of the term of this agreement and upon the end of the term of this agreement, the 
Chancellor-Dean ’s faculty compensation shall be calculated as the average of the three highest 
paid faculty salaries in the department where the Chancellor-Dean is tenured.

If the Chancellor-Dean elects to leave SUBR following a termination without cause then he will 

not be entitled to any further compensation beyond amounts earned as of his last day of 

employment.  Any amounts owed Chancellor-Dean under this section shall be paid in the form of 

a lump sum no later than fifteen (15) days after Chancellor-Dean ’s last day of employment.  

The parties agree that the above payments represent liquidated damages and are all that is due 

should the Agreement be terminated without cause, except ordinary claims for benefits accrued 

and vested as of Chancellor-Dean ’s termination under any pension or welfare benefit plan 

sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-time administrative employees.  

Resignation   

The Chancellor-Dean shall provide the System President with notice of resignation of at least 

ninety (90) days unless such notice is waived by the System President or occasioned by illness or 

disability.  If the Chancellor-Dean voluntarily elects to leave his position as Chancellor-Dean 

during the term of employment herein he shall be entitled to assume his appointment as a full 

professor with tenure within the Southern University System upon the approval of the President.  

He shall be compensated at the average of the three highest paid faculty in the department he is 

tenured.  The Chancellor-Dean is not entitled to summer faculty pay unless agreed by the President.  

His faculty position will begin at the start of the fall or spring semester immediately following the 

expiration of the ninety (90) day notice period or following the effective date of his resignation 

should it be sooner.  

Expiration 

After the end of the term of employment specified herein, the Chancellor-Dean shall revert to his 

position as an at-will Chancellor-Dean without any action required on the part of the President or 

TERMINATION



Board. The Chancellor-Dean shall continue as Chancellor-Dean on an at-will basis upon expiration 

of this agreement subject to the same terms and conditions as other unclassified administrative 

staff.  In the event the Chancellor-Dean is terminated or resigns after the expiration of this 

agreement, he shall be entitled to assume his appointment to the faculty at the same compensation 

as if he has resigned during the term of this agreement.  

Termination For Cause 

If the Chancellor-Dean is terminated for cause, he shall be terminated from all positions with 

SUAREC immediately, including his position as a tenured faculty member at SUBR.  If terminated 

for cause, with the exception of amounts earned prior to the Chancellor-Dean’s termination date 

and ordinary claims for benefits accrued and vested as of Chancellor-Dean ’s termination under 

any pension or welfare benefit plan sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of full-

time administrative employees, the Chancellor-Dean shall be entitled to no further payments 

whatsoever after his termination date.  The reasons for termination shall be provided to the 

Chancellor-Dean in writing and he shall be afforded an opportunity of not less than ten (10) days 

to respond to such notice and a due process hearing before the Board or a designated Board 

Committee.  

The Board may terminate the Chancellor-Dean for cause for the following reasons but not limited 

to:  

Conviction of a crime of moral turpitude;  

A finding of academic dishonesty as that term is defined in the Faculty Handbook;   

Felony indictment for a crime of moral turpitude or other crime which would bring SUAREC and 

SUBR’s and Southern University System’s reputation in disrepute;  

Neglect of duty; and 

Disability (defined as an inability to fulfill the duties of Chancellor-Dean, with the provision of 

reasonable accommodations, for a period of at least ninety (90) consecutive days.).  

SERVICE ON CORPORATE BOARDS 

The Chancellor-Dean may serve as a member of the Board of Directors of other public or private 

corporations so long as such service is not a violation of any law and will not interfere with or 

detract from the performance of his duties and responsibilities as Chancellor-Dean or create any 

conflict of interest involving or affecting the SUBR.  The Chancellor-Dean shall obtain approval 

from the System President prior to accepting an appointment to, or agreeing to continued service 

on, any such Board.  The System President shall not unreasonably withhold its approval.  



  

  

  

EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS     

  

The Chancellor-Dean and the members of his immediate family shall be entitled to any privileges 

or benefits of attendance at SUBR or such other campus within the Southern University System as 

afforded other full-time employees of the SUBR or other campuses within the Southern University 

System.  

  

NOTICES  

  

Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given if given in 

writing, sent by postage prepaid certified mail, or hand delivery to:  

  

Chancellor-Dean Bobby R. Phills, and/or delivered to him at his office at SUAREC.    

  

President, Dr. Ray L. Belton, Southern University System, 4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration 

Building, Baton Rouge, La. 70813  

  

With copies to the General Counsel, Tracie Woods, Southern University System, 4th Floor, J.S. 

Clark Administration Building, Baton Rouge, La.  70813    

  

  

  

ENTIRE CONTRACT  

  

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the Board and the 

Chancellor-Dean with regard to all matters related to his employment.  There are no other 

agreements, conditions or representations, oral written, express or implied, with regard thereto.  

This Agreement may be amended only in writing and signed by both parties thereto.  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by Dr. Bobby R. Phills, Chancellor-

Dean, Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center and Dean of the College 

of Agriculture; Dr. Ray L. Belton, President, Southern University System; Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, 

Chairman, Board of Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, 

as of the _________ day of ______________, 2016.  

  

CHANCELLOR-DEAN, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 

AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH AND EXTESNION 

CENTER AND DEAN OF THE COLLEGE OF 

AGRICULURE 

 

  

              _________________________________  

              DR. BOBBY R. PHILLS         

  

  

  

PRESIDENT, SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 

SYSTEM  

  

  

___________________________________  

DR. RAY L. BELTON   

    

  

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND 

AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANICAL 

COLLEGE  

  

  

____________________________________  

DR. LEON R. TARVER II  

      



Recruiting and Admissions 

Committee 



RECRUITMENT AND ADMISSIONS COMMITTEE 
(Following the Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Invocation

2 Roll Call 

3 Adoption of the Agenda 

4 Public Comments 

5 Informational Item: 

A. Fall 2016 Enrollment Updates, by campuses

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

MEMBERS 

Dr. Curman Gaines, Chair, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Vice Chair, 

Mr. Calvin W. Braxton, Sr., Mr. Raymond Fondel, Jr., Mr. Myron K. Lawson, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr. 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver II – Ex-Officio 



Southern University
Board of Supervisors



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Following the Recruitment & Admissions Committee) 

Friday, September 30, 2016 

Southern University Board of Supervisors Meeting Room 

2nd Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Building 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Invocation

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda

4. Public Comments

5. Action Items:

A. Minutes of August 26, 2016 regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors

B. Committee Reports and Recommendations

C. Request Approval of Restructured Organizational Framework, SUSLA

D. Resolution Authorizing the President to Negotiate Contracts and Sign 
Documents as Necessary to Effect the Sale of Beer on a Trial Basis

6. Informational Items:

A. System President’s Report

B. Campus Reports

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment 



Southern University and A&M College System 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

MINUTES 
Jesse N. Stone Lecture Hall 3050 

Martin Luther King Jr. Drive 
Shreveport, Louisiana 

9 a.m. 
Friday, August 26, 2016 

 
Minutes 

 
The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Leon R. Tarver II.  The 
invocation was given by the Rev. Joe R. Gant.  
 

PRESENT  
Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. Calvin Braxton, Sr., Atty. Tony Clayton, Ms. Jordan Franklin, Rev. Joe R. Gant, Mr. Raymond 

Fondel, Dr. Curman Gaines, Rev. Donald R. Henry, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Atty. Patrick Magee, Mr. 

Darren Mire, Mrs. Ann Smith, Rev. Samuel Tolbert 

ABSENT 

Mr. Michael Small and Dr. Rani Whitfield  
 
UNIVERSITY PERSONNEL ATTENDING  
System President Ray Belton, Chief of Staff Robyn Merrick, Executive Vice President and Provost M. Christopher Brown, 
Vice President for Finance and Business Affairs Flandus McClinton, Interim Chancellor Lisa Mims Devezin (SUNO), 
Director of Finance Linda Batiste (SUAREC), Chancellor Rodney Ellis (SUSLA), and Chancellor John Pierre, (SULC). 

BOARD COUNSEL  
Attys. Winston DeCuir, Sr., and Tracie Woods  

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Upon the motion by Rev. Joe R. Gant and seconded by Mr. Myron K. Lawson the agenda was recommended for 
adoption. 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Dr. Nigel Gwee, Faculty Senate President at SUBR spoke in support of the Tenure and Promotion recommendations for 

faculty.  Atty. Francis Ball wife of Dr. Gwee also addressed Board members in support of faculty.  Dr. Sonya Hester, 

Faculty Senate President, SUSLA also spoke in support of the tenure and promotion recommendations for faculty. Dr. 

Chanika Jones addressed Board members in support of the appointment of Dr. Damien Ejigiri and stated that the 

leadership Dr. Ejigiri has provided to the Criminal Justice Department and the School of Public Policy has been 

invaluable. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5: SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
Dr. M. Christopher Brown spoke about the implications of Elevate Louisiana, an initiative of the Louisiana Board of 

Regents, and provided Board members with a system-wide update on the status of accreditation by the Southern 

Association of Colleges and Schools-Commission on Colleges (SACS) 

 

 



Page 2 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6: ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Minutes of the July 29, 2016, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

Upon the motion by Mrs. Smith and seconded by Rev. Gant the minutes were recommended for approval. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for the Southern University System, that the minutes of the July 29, 
2016, regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, be and it is hereby approved. 
 

B. Academic Affairs (Honorable Ann Smith) 
 

1.  Adoption of the Nursing Program Retention Initiative:  Salary Considerations, SUBR  
(Executive Session may be required) 

Mrs. Smith asked President Belton to provide an overview of the salary considerations being made for School of 

Nursing faculty.  The faculty retention initiative is being proposed to allow faculty members in the School of 

Nursing to earn a salary that is somewhat competitive with local hospitals and health care agencies. 

 

Upon the motion by Mrs. Smith and seconded by Dr. Gaines the nursing faculty retention initiative was 

recommended for approval. 

 

Motion passed. 

Employee Position Proposed Salary 

1. Allen-Garner, Juanita  A. Assistant Professor $65,000 

2. Coulter, Sharon V. Assistant Professor $65,000 

3. Livous, Gwendolyn Assistant Professor $65,000 

4. Marcell, Vinne N. Assistant Professor $65,000 

5. Martin, Tonda Assistant Professor $65,000 

6. Matthews, Diane P. Assistant Professor $65,000 

7. Natal, Gordon Assistant Professor $65,000 

8. Thyssen, Rosalynn Assistant Professor $65,000 

9. Upshaw, Antionella Assistant Professor $65,000 

10.  Williams, Trudy Assistant Professor $65,000 

11.  Hull, Edna Associate Professor $74,000 

12.  Brown, Sandra Professor $90,000 

13.  Spurlock, Wanda Professor $90,000 

14.  Jacqueline Hill Professor $97,000 

15.  Leah Cullens   $65,000 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the School of Nursing faculty retention 
initiative be and it is hereby approved. 
 
2. Request Approval of Strategic Plan-A Way Forward (2016-2021), SUSLA 

Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Mr. Fondel the strategic plan for Southern University, 
Shreveport 2016-2021 was recommended for approval. 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the strategic plan-A Way Forward for 
Southern University, Shreveport 2016-2021 be and it is hereby approved.  

  

 



Page 3 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 

C. Athletics (Honorable Tony Clayton) 

1. Extension of Employment Contract for Head Coach Men’s Basketball, SUBR  
 

2. Extension of Employment Contract for Head Coach Women’s Basketball, SUBR 

3. Operating Budget FY 2016-2017 Athletic Budget, SUNO 

4. Operating Budget FY 2016-2017 Athletic Budget, SUBR 

5. Operating Budget FY 2016-2017 Athletic Budget, SUSLA 
 
Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Mr. Raymond Fondel, items 6 C 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 were 
recommended for approval in-globo. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Employment Contract Extension for Head 
Coach Men’s Basketball, SUBR be and it is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Employment Contract Extension for Head 
Coach Women’s Basketball, SUBR be and it is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the FY 2016-2017 Operating Budget for 
Athletics at Southern University at New Orleans be and it is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the FY 2016-2017 Operating Budget for 
Athletics at Southern University-Baton Rouge be and it is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the FY 2016-2017 Operating Budget for 
Athletics at Southern University-Shreveport be and it is hereby approved. 

 

D. Facilities and Property (Honorable Donald Ray Henry) 

1. Priority Projects Update, SUS (Informational) 

President Belton asked Vice President McClinton to review priority projects.  A list of the priority projects 
was included in the meeting packet.  Vice President McClinton highlighted several items from the list.  In 
response to a question from Board Member Jordan Franklin about the childcare facility on campus, VP 
McClinton stated that the facility was not ADA compliant and according to State of Louisiana guidelines 
could not be occupied.  The report will be placed into the Board office records. 

 

E. Finance (Honorable Myron Lawson) 

1. Request for Approval of Operating Budgets, System-Wide 
VP McClinton gave a summary of the budget and distributed a printed copy of the summary along with 
budgets for all campuses.  Self-generated revenue represents 60% of the operating budget while state funds 
are 32%.  Students are providing a greater portion of the cost of higher education with the decline of state 
support. 

Upon the motion by Mr. Lawson and seconded by Atty. Clayton the operating budgets for SU System 
campuses was recommended for approval 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 



Page 4 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the FY 2016-2017 Operating Budgets for 
Board and System Administration, Southern University and A&M College Baton Rouge, Southern University 
Law Center, Southern University-New Orleans, Southern University-Shreveport and the Southern University 
Law Center be and they are hereby approved. 
 

2. Request for Approval of BA-7 No.1, SUS, SUBR, SULC, SUNO and SUSLA 
Upon the motion by Mr. Lawson and seconded by Atty. Clayton the BA-7 No. 1, for SUS, SUBR, SULC, SUNO 
and SUSLA were recommended for approval 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the BA-7 No. 1, for SUS, SUBR, SULC, 
SUNO and SUSLA be and they are hereby approved. 

 

F. Personnel Affairs (Honorable Patrick Magee) 

1. Faculty Promotions, All campuses 
Personnel Committee Chair Atty. Magee deferred to President Belton who explained that the faculty 
members listed were approved for promotions in rank without the commensurate salary.   
 
Upon the motion by Mr. Lawson and seconded by Mr. Fondel the faculty promotions for SUBR, SUNO, and 
SUSLA were recommended for approval.  
 
Roll call vote: 
Yeas: Tarver, Braxton, Clayton, Fondel, Franklin, Gaines, Gant, Henry, Hilliard, Lawson, Magee, Mire, 
Smith, Tolbert 
 

Nays – None 
 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUSLA Faculty Rank Recommended Salary 
1. Kenechuku Anyanechi Associate Professor $42,335 

2. Jennifer Green Associate Professor $41,450 

3. Aylwin Holmon Associate Professor $41,540 

4. Breunka Moon Associate Professor $40,080 

5. Joslin Pickens Associate Professor $41,451 

6. Shelia Swift Associate Professor $59,199 

7. Daphne Thibeaux Associate Professor $50,656 

8. Harolyn Wilson Assistant Professor $40,790 

9. Olden Wright Assistant Professor $40,023 

SUNO Faculty Rank Recommended Salary 

1. Illya Tietzel Professor $47,659 

2. Cynthia Singleton Professor $47,659 

3. Tchadar Marinov Professor $47,659 

4. Evelyn Harrell Professor $50,608 

5. Joseph Coleman Associate Professor $45,090 

6. Christopher Linn Associate Professor $44,660 

7. Muhammed Miah Associate Professor $72,200 

8. Adrine Harrell-Carter Associate Professor $67,100 

9. Robert Azzarello Associate Professor $47,150 

10.  Bashir Atteia Associate Professor $46,635 

11.  Rachid Belmasrour Associate Professor $46,635 

12.  Jill Murray Associate Professor $48,180 

13.  Sherry Bachus Associate Professor $53,840 



Page 5 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the promotions for faculty members 
at SUSLA, SUNO, and SUBR be and they are hereby approved. 
 

2. Approval of Personnel Action on Positions greater than $60,000 

Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mrs. Ann Smith to approve action Item 6 F 2 in globo  

for the purpose of discussion. 
 

Motion passed. 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary 

CONTINUATIONS 
1. Donald Andrews Dean, College of Business 

Continuation, SUBR 

$130,000 

2. Janet Rami Dean, College of Nursing and Allied Health 
Continuation, SUBR 

$127,000 

NEW APPOINTMENTS/REPLACEMENTS 
3. Ada Kwanbunbumpen Director of Institutional Research, Effectiveness and Strategic 

Planning 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUNO 

$70,000 

4. Willie Jones Interim Dean, College of Education 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUNO 

$80,000 

5. Shelia Duplechain-DeRouen Director of System-wide Assessment and Self-Study and 
Director for Title III 

New Appointment/Replacement, SUS 

$98,500 

6. Francesca Williams Associate Professor/Tenure Track 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$73,000 

7. Mwalima Shujaa Professor, School of Education 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$67,825 

8. Thomas Miller Dean, College of Humanities & Interdisciplinary Studies New 
Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$113,000 

9. Habib Mohamadian Dean, College of Sciences and Engineering 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$132,500 

10.  Damien Ejigiri Dean, Nelson Mandela College of Government & Social Policy 
and Director of Graduate Studies 

New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$132,500 

11.  Albert Samuels Professor and Director, 
Jewel Prestage Social Research Ctr. 

New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$95,000 

12.  Terrilyn Jenkins Gillis Full-time Tenure Track Assistant Professor 
Speech-Language Pathology & Audiology 

New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$62,000 

13.  Jalynn Jones Principal 7-12, SU Laboratory School 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$65,000 

14.  Nadia Seals Principal Pre-K-6, SU Laboratory School New 
Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$65,000 

SUBR Faculty Rank Recommended Salary 
1. Peter Breaux Associate Professor $53,459 

2. Cheria Lane-Mackey Associate Professor $55,659 

3. Caroline Telles Associate Professor $53,853 

4. Allison Anadi Professor $74,148 

5. Alo Dutta Professor $72,382 

6. Nigel Gwee Professor $77,855 

7. Anthony Igiede Professor $68,683 



Page 6 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 

Name Position/Campus Salary 
15.  Kimberly Clark Assistant Professor, School of Nursing 

New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 
$60,000 

16.  Johnette Kay Assistant Professor, School of Nursing 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$60,000 

17.  Shena Williams Assistant Professor, School of Nursing 
New Appointment/Replacement, SUBR 

$60,000 

18.  Michelle Jackson Executive Assistant, Office of the Chancellor 
New Appointment/Replacement, SULC 

 

$84,000 

19.  Tavares A. Walker Director, Office of Career Services 
New Appointment/Replacement, SULC 

$75,000 

20.  Michelle Hill Assistant Vice President for 
Online Enrollment Services 

New Appointment, SUS 

$105,000 

21.  Verjanis Peoples Director, School of Education 
New Appointment, SUBR 

$120,000 

 
Chairman Tarver asked President Belton to give an overview of the personnel actions.  Dr. Belton stated that 
there were several personnel actions that should be removed from consideration.  He recommended 
removal of all appointments associated with the academic stabilization plan to allow faculty members to 
have additional input and engagement in the plan.  He stated that he would defer action on these items 
until the October Board meeting.  Personnel Items 1, 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, 21 were removed from consideration. 
 
Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Atty. Clayton that all personnel actions be approved 
except items 1, 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, 21. 
 
Mrs. Ann Smith questioned the proposed appointments at the Laboratory School. Discussion ensued. 
 
Atty. Clayton stated that with 400 students, employing three principals makes the organization “top heavy.” 
SU Lab School Director Averil Sanders stated that the proposed appointments are an effort to make the 
organization more efficient and the school model that he is using was previously used at the School a few 
years ago.  He explained that the high school attendance and reporting structure is different than the 
attendance and reporting structure at the elementary level.  Mr. Lawson stated that maybe a title change 
should be considered for the proposed appointments.  Chairman Tarver stated that the director should offer 
a more thorough explanation to members of the Board at the next board meeting. 
 
Atty. Clayton offered a substitute motion seconded by Rev. Donald Henry to remove personnel items 1, 2, 
8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, and 21. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Administration’s recommendation 
for approval of positions with salaries greater than $60,000 (excluding items 1, 2, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, and 21) 
be and they are hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 
 

3. Approval of Medical Leave of Absence with Pay (3) months or longer, 

 
a.) Shirley McLendon, starting August, 01 2016 to November 10, 2016, SUS 

b.) Joseph H. Stewart, Jr., starting July 01, 2016 to January 1, 2017, SUBR 

c.) Michelle Ghetti, starting August 15, 2016 to May 31, 2017, SULC 

 
Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mr. Lawson that the medical leave of absence 
with pay for Shirley McLendon, Joseph H. Stewart, Jr. and Michelle Ghetti be approved in globo. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the medical leave of absence with 

pay for Shirley McClendon (August 1, 2016- November 10, 2016), SUS be and it hereby is approved. 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the medical leave of absence with 

pay for Joseph H. Stewart, Jr. (July 1, 2016 – January 1, 2017), SUBR be and it hereby is approved. 

 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the medical leave of absence with 

pay for Michelle Ghetti. (August 15, 2016 – May 31, 2017), SULC be and it hereby is approved. 

 

4. Approval of Leave of Absence with Pay (3) months or longer, 
 
a.) Russell Jones, starting August 15, 2016 to January 1, 2017, SULC 

Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mr. Fondel that the leave of absence with pay for Russell 
Jones be approved. 

Atty. Clayton questioned whether a precedent was being set with faculty and administrators taking leaves of 
absence with pay.  Vice President for Human Resources Lester Pourciau was asked to clarify the leave of 
absence.  Mr. Pourciau stated that since the historic flood event, leaves of absence have been extended to 
employees that were affected.  Atty. Woods stated that an executive order from the Office of the Governor 
was sent to state agencies that encourages leniency during this period.   

Rev. Tolbert called for the question. 

Motion passed.  Atty. Clayton opposed approval of this item. 
 
RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the leave of absence with pay for 

Russell Jones (August 15, 2016- January 1, 2017), SULC be and it hereby is approved. 

 

G. Recruitment and Admissions (Honorable Curman Gaines) 
 

1. Update on Enrollment for Fall, 2016, all campuses (Informational) 
Each campus provided enrollment figures for the Fall 2016 semester as follows: 
Interim Chancellor Lisa Mims-Devezin stated that current enrollment at SUNO is 2,473 compared to 2,700 
students at this time last Fall. 
 
 
 



Page 8 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 
 
Chancellor Ellis stated that SUSLA enrollment is 2,671 compared to 3,174 last fall. 
 
Chancellor Pierre stated that SULC enrollment is down with 590 students that have schedules-(i.e. the students 
have registered for classes) and 526 that have completed registration (i.e. paid tuition and any fees).  He stated 
that additional students would be paying throughout the weekend. At this time last fall, SULC had 612 students 
with schedules at this time.  Like the national trend in law schools the 1st year class is down.   
 
SUBR Vice Chancellor Brandon Dumas distributed a written report of the enrollment statistics for SUBR and 
stated that the first day of class ran concurrently with the first day of registration.  There are 319 fewer students 
enrolled at the University compared to the 2015 Fall semester.   Dr. Dumas thanked Dr. Fagbeyiro and the 
technology team that assisted with set up of the Jag Q initiative so students don’t have to wait in line to 
complete the registration process.  Students receive a message 15 minutes prior to their appointment time 
notifying them to return to the arena to see financial aid counselors.   

 
Mr. Fondel stated that students will be dealing with challenges and asked the administration to be sensitive to 
returning students who may have been affected by the flood. 

H. Memorandum of Understanding Between Southern University and A&M College and Thurgood 
Marshall College Fund 

Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Dr. Gaines that the Memorandum of 
Understanding between Southern University and A&M College and the Thurgood Marshall College 
Fund by approved. 

Motion passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, that the Memorandum of Understanding between 
Southern University and the Thurgood Marshall College Fund be and it is hereby approved. 

I. Resolutions (Agenda item was moved so that it would occur before the finalists interviews) 
President Belton announced resolutions as follows: 

 

Mrs. Naomi Thelma Harrison Loeb Family. Mrs. Loeb is a native of Eunice, LA and mother of Mrs. Cynthia Loeb 

Tarver, former Director of Financial Aid at SUBR and mother-in-law of SU Board Chairman Leon R. Tarver II.  She 

passed away August 6. 

 

Dr. Mervell Winzer Bracewell Family.  Dr. Bracewell, mother of Dr. Cheryl Taylor, Director of the Graduate 

Nursing Program passed away on August 21. 

 

Upon the motion of Mr. Darren Mire and seconded by Mr. Fondel the resolutions were recommended for 

approval. 
 

Motion passed. 

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University that the resolutions be and they are hereby 
approved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 
 

J. Finalists Interviews for Chancellor of SUAREC & Dean of College of Agriculture 
Dr. Adell Brown was the first finalist interviewed by members of the Board in the public session. 

Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mr. Fondel the Board convened in executive 

session with Dr. Brown. 

RECONVENTION 

Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mr. Braxton the Board reconvened. 

Chairman Tarver thanked Dr. Brown for serving in the interim position and the interview ended. 

Dr. Lionel Lyles was interviewed publicly by members of the Board. Upon completion of the 

interview with Dr. Lyles.  Dr. Bobby Phills was interviewed by members of the Board publicly. 

Upon the motion by Mr. Lawson and seconded by Dr. Gaines the Board convened in executive 

session for both Dr. Lionel Lyles and Dr. Bobby Phills.  

RECONVENTION 

Upon the motion by Atty. Magee and seconded by Mr. Fondel the Board reconvened. 

From the candidates interviewed, President Belton offered for consideration Dr. Lionel Lyles as 

Chancellor of the SU Agricultural Research and Extension Center (SUAREC) and Dean of the 

College of Agriculture. 

Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Mr. Hilliard to accept the recommendation 

to appoint Dr. Lionel Lyles to the position of Chancellor/Dean. 

Roll call vote: 

Yeas:  Tarver, Braxton, Clayton, Gaines, Hilliard, Lawson, Mire, Smith 

Nays:  Fondel, Gant, Henry, Magee, Tolbert 

Abstentions: Franklin 

Motion failed. 

Upon the motion by Rev. Samuel Tolbert and seconded by Rev. Donald Henry, Dr. Bobby Phills 

was recommended for the position of Chancellor of the SU Agricultural Research and Extension 

Center (SUAREC) and Dean of the College of Agriculture. 

Roll call vote: 

Yeas:  Fondel, Gant, Henry, Hilliard, Lawson, Magee, Mire, Smith, Tolbert 

Nays:  Tarver, Braxton, Clayton, Gaines,  

Abstentions: Franklin 

Motion passed. 

 

 



Page 10 
SU Board of Supervisors Minutes 
August 26, 2016 

 

 

Dr. Phills was congratulated as the new leader of the College of Agriculture and Chancellor of 

the SU Agricultural Research and Extension Center.  He thanked Board members for their 

support and Chairman Tarver invited him to the table with the other Chancellors and senior 

leadership staff.  Mr. Fondel presented a Bible to Dr. Phills on behalf of the Board. 

 

K. Informational Items 

1. System President’s Report 

President Belton expressed appreciation to SUBR staff for assisting persons who were housed in the F.G. 
Clark Activity Center shelter and thanked Shreveport campus employees and others who provided support.  
He also thanked Shreveport campus administration and staff for hosting the Board meeting. 

 
2. Campus Reports 

All campus reports were included in the meeting packet. 
 

7. Other Business 
NONE 

 

8. Adjournment 
Upon the motion by Atty. Clayton and seconded by Mr. Fondel the meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Page 1 
 

SALARY COMPARISONS FOR CURRENT AND NEW SUSLA POSITIONS 

Current Position(s) New Position(s) Current Salary(ies) Max Proposed Salary(ies) Salary Difference 

Vice Chancellor of Finance 
and Administration 

Chief Financial Officer $88,065 $85,000 ($3,065) 

Executive Associate to the 
Chancellor 

Chief Administrative and 
Operations Officer 

$82,400 $82,400 $0 

No Current Position 
 
 
Executive Director of the 
Foundation 
 
NOTE: This row is not included 
in calculations as it includes an 
external funding source that 
equalizes salary adjustments. 

Chief Advancement and 
Marketing Officer 
 
Executive Director of the 
Foundation 

$0 
 
 
$55,000 

$65,000 
 
 
$62,500 

$65,000* 
 
 
$7,500* 
 
 
* Funding provided by a portion 
of the annual $200K increase in 
SUSLA’s Title III Federal Grant. 
Excluded from TOTAL. 

Vice Chancellor of 
Academic and Student 
Affairs 
 
~Assistant Vice Chancellor 
of Enrollment 
Management 
 
~Assistant Vice Chancellor 
of Student Affairs 

Vice Chancellor of 
Academic Affairs 
 
 
Vice Chancellor of Student 
Affairs and Enrollment 
Management 
 
~Assistant Vice Chancellor 
of College Access 

$116,390 
 
 
 
$74,160 
 
 
 
$70,040 

$101,500 
 
 
 
$90,000 
 
 
 
$72,155 

($14,890) 
 
 
 
$15,840 
 
 
 
$2,115 

Vice Chancellor of 
Workforce Development 

Vice Chancellor of 
Workforce Development 

$84,460 $84,460 $0 

Vice Chancellor of 
Research Sponsored 
Programs and Institutional 
Effectiveness 

Vice Chancellor of 
Research Sponsored 
Programs and Institutional 
Effectiveness 

$90,000 $90,000 $0 

TOTALS $605,515 $605,515 $0 

~ Positions report to the Vice Chancellor   



Page 2 
 

NEW POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 

Chief Financial Officer: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all aspects of the fiscal affairs of Southern University 

at Shreveport (SUSLA) to ensure success of the educational mission. Leads, plans, manages, organizes, and evaluates business operations, 

systems, and processes, including budget development and administration, short-term and long-term strategic financial planning, fiscal and 

accounting services, banking and payroll, purchasing, and other related operational functions. 

Chief Administrative and Operations Officer: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all aspects of information 

technology, facilities management, and the university polices of Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA). Handles a wide range of matters of 

institutional importance; but, will be chiefly responsible for developing and implementing key college initiatives and working with leadership and 

various teams to execute the plans. 

Chief Advancement and Marketing Officer: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all aspects of the advancement 

and marketing operations of Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA). Leads the planning, management and evaluation of public relations, 

communications, marketing, fundraising and resource development for the college. 

Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all aspects of academic affairs for 

Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA) to ensure success of the educational mission. Provides executive oversight and strategic guidance in 

the planning, development, implementation, assessment, and evaluation of all aspects of academic programming for all academic divisions 

(including SUSLA Connect) as well as instructional support services (i.e., library services and online/distance education). 

Vice Chancellor of Student Affairs and Enrollment Management: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all 

aspects of the student affairs and enrollment management for Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA) to ensure success of the educational 

mission. Provides oversight of Admissions, Recruitment, Advising & Retention, Financial Aid, Registrar/Records, Athletics, Student Activities, and 

College Access Programs. 

Vice Chancellor of Workforce Development: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative oversight to all aspects of workforce and 

community development for Southern University at Shreveport (SUSLA). Provides leadership to Corporate and Continuing Education, Non-Credit 

and Contracted Workforce Training, Career Technical Education, Small Business Development and Community Services. 

Vice Chancellor of Research, Sponsored Programs and Institutional Effectiveness: Responsible for providing leadership and administrative 

oversight to all aspects of institutional research, institutional effectiveness and sponsored programs for Southern University at Shreveport 

(SUSLA) to ensure success of the educational mission. Provides strategic planning and direction for assessment and accreditation processes, 

including a comprehensive institutional research program that supports the decision-making, mission, and strategic goals of the University. 



















 

 

September 2016 

Southern University Law Center 

Board of Supervisors Report 

 

INSIDE THIS ISSUE 

#SULCRecovery ...................... 2 

Alumni News ........................... 3 

Student News .......................... 4 

SPECIAL POINTS OF INTEREST 

 Faculty News 

 Staff News 

 

 

FALL 2016 BEGINS WITH HISTORIC FLOOD 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

In the aftermath of the historic flooding in Baton Rouge, Southern Uni-
versity Law Center operations resumed on Thursday, August 18, 2016, 
with classes; information on disaster assistance; updates on faculty, 
staff, and retirees adversely affected by the flooding; and a hot break-
fast. 

“Many of you are in a state of distress because of significant property 
losses due to the flood and the Thursday start date was chosen to give 
you as much time as practicable to sort things out,” Chancellor John 
Pierre stated. 

“Some of you may have suffered losses that are so significant that re-
turning to work on Thursday just might not be possible,” Chancellor 
Pierre said.  “Please let me know if that is the case, so that we can plan 
what steps we need to take,” he said. 

Disaster resources and recovery information is posted on the SULC 
website: http://www.sulc.edu. The website is continuously updated as 
information is made available. 

“We will all face significant challenges this fall semester, and I want you 
to know that as a SULC family, we can overcome those challenges,” the 
Chancellor said. 

“God bless and be safe.” 

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://educateforabettertomorrow.org/img/sulc_logo.jpg&imgrefurl=http://educateforabettertomorrow.org/partnerschools.html&h=181&w=225&tbnid=k1SlU70KknsYdM:&docid=yngoqbB53AaPrM&ei=_DPKVZmjOoybyATM-ajoAg&tbm=isch&ved=0C
http://www.sulc.edu/


 

 

2 

FACULTY NEWS 

Tavares Walker, Director of Career 
Services, has been appointed to a sec-
ond term on the LSBA Bar Governance 
Committee. 

Profs. Gail S. Stephenson and Wen-
dy Shea presented “Programs Under 
Pressure: Weathering the Storm” at the 
17th Biennial Conference of the Legal 
Writing Institute (LWI) in Portland, Ore-
gon, July 10-13, 2016. The LWI Confer-
ence is one of the largest conferences of 
law professors in the world, second only 
to the American Association of Law 
Schools (AALS) annual meeting, and 
presentation slots are highly competitive. 

The Southern University Law Center launched its Disaster Recov-
ery Law Clinic on Monday, August 29, 2016. 

Under the supervision of the SULC clinical education faculty, along 
with volunteer attorneys and members of organizations, law stu-
dents working with the Disaster Recovery Law Clinic will provide 
legal help to those individuals suffering in the aftermath of the 2016 
flooding in Southeast Louisiana. The clinic’s assistance is being of-
fered to low-income persons or those financially impacted by the 
flood. 

SULC Student Volunteers 
Assist Flood Victims - “How 
are things going here in Louisi-
ana,” you ask? “Well, no one 
knows for sure. What we do 
know, however, is that there are 
miles and miles of family living 
piled at the curb, which is a new 
measure of progress for us, ac-
tually,” according to Sister Ju-
dith Brun, executive director of 
the Community Initiatives 
Foundation (CIF). “Perhaps, a 
more salient inquiry would be 
one concerning the overall com-
posure—mental, emotional, and 
spiritual—of flooded families as 
they fight to overcome an obsta-
cle as trying as this one.” 

SULC students Lamar Gardner 
and Regina Rudisill are just two 
of the volunteers lending a 
much-needed helping hand to 
flood victims throughout the 
Baton Rouge area. 

STAFF NEWS 

Carla Ball, Administrative Assis
tant, and Rachel L. Emanuel, Direc
tor of Communications and Devel-
opment Support, attended the 2016 
HBCU Executive Media Training Insti-
tute, July 14-16, in Washington, D.C. The 
focus was on social media, crisis manage
ment, and branding campaign, and short-
term communication plan development. 

Rudisill and Gardner 

Virginia Listach, Di-

rector of Clinical Ed-

ucation, speaks with 

a reporter from 

WAFB about the new 

clinic. 



 

 

  3 

ALUMNI NEWS 

The movie, “The Stairs,” by Mort 
Laitner, ’75, is the winner of the 
Near Nazareth Film Festival, Is-
rael and Top Indie Film Awards—
Best Documentary Short, Cana-
da; and is reported to being doing 
well on the film festival circuit. 

Robin Raasch, ’12, has taken a 

job in the corporate group at the 

Houston office of Akin Gump 

LLC. Raasch is specifically as-

signed to the Global Energy 

Transaction group, working on 

energy mergers and acquisitions. 

William J. Wilson, ’15, is one of three newest members to the 2016-17 
Board of Directors of Council on Licensure, Enforcement & Regulation 
(CLEAR). Wilson is a compliance investigator with the Louisiana State 
Board of Nursing. Since 2007, he has served in various departments with 
the Louisiana State Board of Nursing, including Investigations, Monitor-
ing/Recovering Nurse Program, and Hearings. 

Terry Landry Jr., ‘07, has been hired as the director 
of Medicaid Program Integrity for the Louisiana Depart-
ment of Health (DH). Landry’s major responsibility as a 
manager of the state’s Medicaid Program is developing 
and implementing current and long-range plans, poli-
cies, procedures, and, regulations as they relate to pro-
gram fraud and abuse.  

Vanessa Griddine, ’14, is director of programs for the U.S. Congressional 
Black Caucus Institute in Washington, D.C. The Congressional Black Caucus 
Institute, incorporated in 2000, is a non-profit, non-partisan, social purpose 
organization and counts among its distinguished board of directors, U.S. 
Congressman Bennie Thompson of Mississippi’s 2nd District, U.S. Congress-
man Jim Clyburn of South Carolina’s 6th District, U.S. Congressman Cedric 
Richmond of Louisiana’s 2nd District, and newly elected member former Con-
gressman Cleo Fields. 

 Cleo Fields, ’87, was recently elected to the Board of Directors of 
the Congressional Black Caucus Institute (CBCI), during the Insti-
tute’s premier policy conference held August 11-13, 2016, in Tunica, 
Mississippi. The CBCI serves in training the next generation of po-
litical leaders and providing voters with relevant information re-
garding issues in their communities. 



 

 

STUDENT NEWS 

  4 

Snapshots from the Student Organization Fair held on August 31, 2016 

 

First-year evening division student Paul P. Brown 
recently joined the Southern University Career Ser-
vices Center as a career counselor. Before enrolling in 
law studies and joining Southern University, Brown 
was employed with the Department of Employment 
Services and the District of Columbia Public Schools 
in Washington, D.C. He earned a bachelor’s degree 
from Winthrop University, Rock Hill, SC; and an 
MPA from Savannah State University, Chatham 

County, Georgia. 
  

This past summer 2L Leila Arefi-Pour worked 
as a law clerk with the Animal Welfare Institute, 
based in Washington D.C. Arefi-Pour was as-
signed to the institute’s Shark Fin Campaign. The 
Animal Welfare Institute, founded in 1951, aims 
to alleviate animal suffering caused by humans. 
Its work was initially focused on the needs of ani-
mals used for experimental purposes, but has 
since broadened its efforts to all forms of animal 
suffering. The Shark Fin Campaign focuses on 
increasing the enforcement of existing legal bans 
on the use and importation of shark fins. 

 



September 2016  243-113 

  

Bobby R. Phills 
Chancellor 

 
Gina E. Eubanks 
Vice Chancellor for Extension 

 

Linda Batiste 
Director of Finance 

Christopher Rogers 
Director of Technology Services 

 

Editors 

Bridget Udoh 

Donna C. Badon 

LaKeeshia Giddens Lusk 
 

A. O. Williams Hall 

P.O. Box 10010 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

Tel: (225) 771-2242 

Fax: (225) 771-2861 

Website: www.suagcenter.com 
 

Southern University 

Agricultural Research and 

Extension Center, an entity of 

the Southern University 

System, Bobby R. Phills., 

Chancellor; Ray Belton, 

System President; Leon R. 

Tarver II, Chairman, Board of 

Supervisors.  It is issued in 

furtherance of the 

Cooperative Extension Work 

Act of December 1971, and the 

Agricultural Research 

Program, in cooperation with 

the U.S. Department of 

Agriculture. All educational 

programs conducted by the 

Southern University 

Agricultural Research and 

Extension Center are 

provided to all persons 

regardless of race, national 

origin, or disability.  

© 2008 SU Ag Center. 

Southern University 

Agricultural Research and Extension Center 

Chancellor’s report 
 

Bobby R. Phills 

 

 

 

 

Presented to: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Southern University and A&M System 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Linking Citizens of Louisiana with Opportunities for Success  
 

 

 

http://www.suagcenter.com/


September 2016  243-113 

Bobby Phills named Chancellor of the SU Ag Center/ Dean of the College of Ag 

 

The Southern University Agricultural Research and 

Extension Center has a new leader for the second 

time since it was established in 2001. The 

Southern University Board of Supervisors’ 

on August 26, 2016 named Bobby R. 

Phills as Chancellor/Dean of the SU Ag 

Center/College of Agriculture effective 

September 1. 

Phills was one of three finalists selected 

by a search committee chaired by Kirkland 

Mellad, Vice Chancellor Emeritus, SU Ag Center, 

and former dean for the College of Agricultural, 

Family and Consumer Sciences, SU Baton Rouge 

campus, to replace Leodrey Williams, who retired 

June, 2015 after more than 40 years of service, and 

as chancellor since the SU Ag Center campus was 

established. The committee was co-chaired by Gina 

Eubanks, Vice Chancellor for Extension, SU Ag 

Center. 

“I asked stakeholders across the state and those in 

the Ag Center and College of Agriculture to engage 

in a process to seek three candidates for 

consideration. These were three very qualified 

candidates, who have each enjoyed tremendous 

careers in agriculture and I believe that each would 

do an outstanding job in this role,” said SU System 

President-Chancellor Ray L. Belton. 

Phills’s position will be historic as well. The 

Southern University Board of Supervisors voted in 

April to combine the Southern University College 

of Agriculture with the SU Ag Center. The move 

aligns the academic unit located on the SU Baton 

Rouge campus with the Ag Center, allowing the 

operating functions of the three land-grant units 

(teaching, research, and cooperative extension) to 

be managed by the Chancellor/Dean. 

SU Board of Supervisors Chairman Leon R. Tarver 

II offered congratulations as well to the new 

Chancellor-Dean who will lead the SU Ag Center 

and College of Agriculture. 

 

Phills is a graduate of Southern University in 

horticultural sciences.  He also received his MS and 

Ph.D. degrees from Louisiana State 

University in horticulture with emphasis in 

plant breeding, and a post doctorate from 

Cornell University in plant breeding and 

genetics.   

Phills recently retired from Florida A&M 

University where he served for six years as 

Dean and Director of Land-Grant Programs 

with administrative responsibilities for teaching, 

research, extension and international programs from 

1997 to 2003. Prior to his Florida A&M University 

post, he was Dean and Research Director of the SU 

College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer 

Sciences from 1985-1997. Phills also served as 

Director of the Small Fruit Research program in the 

Center for Viticulture and Small Fruit Research for 

11 years. During his professional career, he has 

served in numerous capacities including: Scientist, 

Mentor, Program Leader, Faculty, Project Director, 

Principal Investigator, Research Director, Director, 

etc. He once served as George W. Carver 

Experiment Station, and Associate Director at the 

Carver Research Foundation (Tuskegee University), 

as well as Dean and Director of land-grant programs 

(Florida A&M University).  

While his overall achievements have been and 

continue to be significant, he cites the impact that 

he has had on student recruitment, graduation, and 

professional development as his greatest pride and 

joy. Phills says that more than 200 students that 

graduated under his watch have gone on to become 

great leaders in their chosen professions which 

include agricultural and family and consumer 

scientists, biological engineers, food scientists, plant 

breeders, and educators, just to name a few.  He 

boasts that more than 50 of his students have 

worked or are working for USDA agencies, many 

of which are in senior level administrative positions.  

The Chancellor-Dean’s new vision for the Land-

Grant Campus going forward includes: Integrated 

programs across the campus; Linkage with 

Dr. Phills



September 2016  243-113 

agricultural industry, other land-grant institutions 

and the federal government; Two-way integration of 

land-grant programs; Fund raising; Scholarship and 

endowment; paradigm shift in the way that land-

grant serves its clientele especially outreach by 

seeking out clientele needs and providing assistance 

in addressing these needs; Significant increase in 

grants and contracts within all USDA agencies. 

Strengthening of faculty numbers and capacity to 

look at emerging issues across the nation in terms of 

human capital development; Critical expertise vis-a-

vis recruitment; Terminal degrees; Faculty and staff 

development to include short-term study leave; and 

Faculty two-way integration among the land-grant 

components of research, teaching and extension. 

 

 

President Belton formally introduces new SU Ag Center Chancellor-COA Dean 

 

Southern University System President Ray Belton 

officially introduced the newly appointed Ag Center 

Chancellor/College of Agriculture Dean Dr. Bobby 

R. Phills on 

September 6, 2016. 

Dr. Phills, who 

commenced duty on 

September 1, was 

presented to the 

faculty, staff and 

students of the SU 

Agricultural Research 

and Extension Center 

and College of Agriculture.   

 

 

Also in attendance to welcome Dr. Phills and 

address the audience was SU Board member and 

Chair of the Academic Committee Hon. Ann A. 

Smith. The extension field staff in more 

than 33 Louisiana parishes attended the 

event via remote access. Earlier in the day, 

Dr. Phills toured the facilities for the SU 

Agricultural Research and Extension 

Center and College of Agriculture and met 

with faculty, staff and students. During his 

speech, Dr. Phills emphasized the 

importance of team work. “I need your 

help, you need my help, and we need to 

work as a team if we must succeed,” said Dr. Phills. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

L-r: Hon. Smith, President-
Chancellor Belton, 

Chancellor-Dean Phills



September 2016  243-113 

Administrators and staff participate in Local Food Stakeholder Roundtable Meeting 

 

Southern University Ag Center Interim Chancellor 

Dr. Adell Brown, Jr., Vice Chancellor for Extension 

Dr. Gina E. Eubanks, Agricultural Specialist Dr. 

Dawn Mellion-Patin and Senior Research Associate 

Mila Berhane were among the participants of a 

statewide Louisiana Local 

Food Stakeholder 

Roundtable. 

 

The meeting, which was 

held at the LSU AgCenter 

Botanic Gardens, Ione E. 

Burden Visitor and 

Conference Center in Baton 

Rouge, on August 5, 2016, 

brought small farmers, Ag 

businesses, Ag universities 

and community groups together with United States 

Department of Agriculture (USDA) agencies to 

discuss the challenges facing Louisiana’s local 

farmers. 

 

“A lot of consumers are asking to buy local and we 

see that as a huge opportunity for farmers and for  

businesses, but it’s not always easy to connect the 

dots and have that supply meet that demand,” said 

Elanor Starmer, USDA’s Agricultural Marketing 

Service Administrator. 

 

 

 

 

During the discussion, some pointed out a lack of 

infrastructure/technology, labor, cooperation among 

farmers, assistance to young farmers, and needed 

reforms to the Farm Bill as some of the challenges 

faced by the state’s local producers. 

 

Dr. Mellion-Patin voiced 

her concern of a lack of 

consistency among some 

small farmers. 

 

“The trend is changing, 

we’re (the SU Ag Center) 

getting a lot of new and 

beginning farmers, but one 

of the challenges is that 

their acreage is so small and 

many of them grow a lot of 

different produce, so it’s not enough to provide to a 

consistent market where they would need to have a 

sustained level of volume,” explained Patin. 

 

Dr. Eubanks addressed the issue of a declining 

number of young people pursuing careers in the 

field of agriculture by sharing information on the 

SU Ag Center’s Jags-In-Ag and Beginning 

Agricultural Youth Opportunities Unlimited 

(B.A.Y.O.U.) Programs. Both programs are geared 

towards exposing college and high school students, 

respectively, to the career opportunities available in 

agriculture.  

Read more at http://bit.ly/2bzCF1W 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

L-r: Gina E. Eubanks, Dawn Milloen-Patin, Craig 
McCain, Elanor Starmer, Arthur Neal and Lee Jones 
at the Louisiana Local Food Stakeholder Roundtable 

meeting 

http://bit.ly/2bzCF1W


September 2016  243-113 

 

Urban Forestry student shines amid 2016 HBCU All-Stars  

Kalaia Tripeaux, a Southern University Agricultural and 

Mechanical College junior, is one of 73 students from 

across 63 HBCUs who have been named the 2016 White 

House Initiative on Historically Black 

Colleges and Universities HBCU All-Stars. 

The All-Stars, comprised of undergraduate, 

graduate, and professional students, are 

being recognized for their 

accomplishments in academics, leadership, 

and civic engagement.  

“During the course of one academic school 

year, the 73 All-Stars will distinguish 

themselves as exemplars of the talent that 

HBCUs cultivate and as noble 

ambassadors of their respective institutions,” said U.S. 

Secretary of Education John B. King, Jr. “The Initiative 

is looking forward to working with this third class of 

All-Stars and is confident this opportunity will allow the 

Initiative to meaningfully connect with HBCU students 

and advance academic excellence at their schools.” 

 

Twenty-year old Tripeaux is a Baton Rouge native and a 

2014 graduate of Baton Rouge Magnet High School. 

Kalaia admits she had her eyes set on attending Southern 

University but was unsure of a major.  However, through 

conversations with Southern University Ag Center’s 

Renita Marshall, DVM, who doubles as a student 

recruiter, the field of agriculture began to really become 

intriguing to Tripeaux.  She consequently participated in 

the Summer 2014 “Beginning Agricultural Youth 

Opportunities Unlimited (BAYOU) Program,” and 

acquired a wealth of knowledge about majors offered in 

the agricultural and family & consumer sciences areas.   

“I decided that my interests aligned with urban forestry.  

I could see where my love for science and the outdoors, 

interaction with people, problem-solving, writing, and 

researching could be used in this field.”   

Now an Urban Forestry major, Tripeaux 

was awarded scholarships by the SU 

Agriculture Department, Taylor 

Opportunity Program (TOPS), Mu Zeta 

Chapter of Zeta Phi Beta Sorority, 

Incorporated, and the USDA’s 1890 

Scholar Program to attend Southern 

University in Baton Rouge.  

In the spring of 2016, Tripeaux was one of 

11 SU Baton Rouge urban forestry students selected to 

receive a Global Scholar Award through the Global 

Research Experience for Students Program launched by 

the Urban Forestry and Natural Resources Program.  

When the White House Initiative on Historically Black 

Colleges and Universities HBCU All-Stars opportunity 

was announced, Tripeaux states that many of her 

agriculture professors said that she would be a good 

candidate and was encouraged to apply.  

“So, in other words, I was encouraged by the faculty and 

staff of the Agriculture Department to apply for this 

honor,” she said. 

 Tripeaux was selected from a national pool of 300 

candidates.  Read the full article at http://bit.ly/2bjZVEi 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Kalaia Tripeaux poses between 
her mentor Dr. Marshall and 

President Belton

http://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/white-house-initiative-historically-black-colleges-and-universities-announces-third-class-hbcu-all-stars
http://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/white-house-initiative-historically-black-colleges-and-universities-announces-third-class-hbcu-all-stars
http://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/white-house-initiative-historically-black-colleges-and-universities-announces-third-class-hbcu-all-stars
http://sites.ed.gov/whhbcu/resources/hbcu-all-star-students/
http://bit.ly/2bjZVEi


September 2016  243-113 

 

 

The Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives provides free services to flood victims in Opelousas  

 

The Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives has 

partnered with Atty. John M. Allen, III to provide 

free notary services to recent flood 

victims in the Opelousas area.  

Atty. Allen, who is a DWI and 

personal injury attorney, is assisting 

community members with affidavits 

and other documents that need 

notarizing in regards to the recent 

disaster; including necessary 

documents for FEMA processing.  

The program began on Monday, 

August 29 at the Southwest Center, 1209 Diesi St., 

Opelousas, LA 70570. Atty. Allen’s services are 

available by appointment, and open to the public.  

 

To schedule an appointment, call 337-943-2410 or 

email, Krystle_Washington@suagcenter.com.  

Visit our blog for more at 

http://bit.ly/2bQ4CVK 

The Southwest Center for Rural 

Initiatives is a satellite campus of the 

Southern University Agricultural 

Research and Extension Center. 

 

 

SU Ag Center Partners with Red Cross Relief Center in St. Helena Parish for Temp After-School Program 

 

Approximately two days into the start of a new 

school year, classes were abruptly canceled from 

what many south Louisiana natives are calling, 

“One of the worst natural disasters in Louisiana’s 

history.”  As the Great Flood of 2016 vastly 

inundated many homes throughout St. Helena 

Parish, some residents are faced with a new reality 

of temporarily living in a shelter.  A local Red 

Cross representative stated that there are no 

immediate plans to move flood victims from the 

Multi-purpose Center that sits right on the 

Tangipahoa Parish line, but is in St. Helena 

Parish’s Fifth District.  The representative also 

stated that they have explored the option of hotel 

vouchers, but did not want to create other obstacles 

for those who do not have access to transportation 

to get to work and school. 

The shelters population consist of youth who will 

undoubtedly begin to have homework, and could 

potentially have other stressors due to their lack of 

resources or homelessness.  Through the use of the 

Southern University Ag Center’s Youth Educational 

Support Program (Y.E.S.), 

displaced families can be assured 

that the SU Ag Center has Youth 

Development Agents to meet 

their educational needs.      

“I’ve actually been in talks with 

Police Jurors and School Board 

Officials prior to the natural 

disaster about starting an after-

school program at the Multi-

purpose Center…Under these extenuating 

circumstances the YES Program can definitely 

address some of the immediate needs, like assisting 

with homework and providing ancillary activities to 

keep their minds off their temporary living 

arrangement,” said SU Ag Center, Assistant Area 

Agent, Nicolette Gordon.   

Attorney John M. Allen

American Red Cross 
location sign

mailto:Krystle_Washington@suagcenter.com
http://bit.ly/2bQ4CVK


September 2016  243-113 

Gordon will conduct a needs assessment, and will 

begin building a team of volunteers who will help 

throughout the duration of the temporary after-

school program.  

For more information on volunteer opportunities, 

please contact Nicolette Gordon in the St. Helena 

Parish Extension office on Tuesday & Thursday at 

225.222.4136 or via email at 

nicolette_gordon@suagcenter.com. 

 

 

 

 

Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives Hosts Successful 4-H Youth Ambassador Training 

 

 

The Southwest Center for Rural Initiatives hosted a 

‘Student Ambassadors for Healthy Living Training 

Workshop’ on Thursday, July 28th and Friday, July 

29th. During the workshops, students 

were exposed to the following areas:  

 Introduction and Program 

Overview- enlightened the youth 

that healthy living encompasses a 

holistic approach (healthy eating 

habits, physical fitness, emotional 

intelligence, and positive social 

interactions) 

 Teens as Teachers: 4-H 

Youth Advocates for Health – youth were 

introduced to the year-long ambassador activities 

they would be responsible for facilitating to 

encourage their peers to make holistic and positive 

health-related changes. 

 Keeping the Garden Growing and 

Harvesting the Garden- youth learned how to plan, 

plant, maintain and cultivate gardens with a hands-

on workshop in the Southwest Center’s hoop house. 

 What are the Chemicals in My Food? – 
Youth conducted an experiment on the 

macromolecules in food. 

 Healthy, Fitness, and Mindfulness - youth 

participated in a 4-H Yoga for Kids Warm up and 

Full-Workout, learned how to utilize and track their 

fitness through the use of Polar Activity Watches, 

and Relaxation/ Meditation techniques. 

 Healthy Snacks- youth explored the 

importance of nutrition as it relates to the quality of 

life, and how to choose healthy food options 

 Following Thursday’s training; the 

4-H Youth Ambassadors, as well as 

workshop facilitators; community 

volunteers; and parent volunteers, 

traveled to Mansura, La. to visit the 

40H Museum and the Desfossé 

House, which is the oldest home in 

Avoyelles Parish.  

 

You can learn more about the 

Desfossé House by clicking here:  

Pictures from the Training and Trip are available at 

http://bit.ly/2by5AJV 

For questions or additional I  nformation on the 4-H 

Youth Ambassadors or other Southwest Center 

youth programs, please contact the Southwest 

Center for Rural Initiatives at 337-943-2410. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Southwest Center for Rural 
Initiatives staff with 4-H 

Youth Ambassadors

mailto:nicolette_gordon@suagcenter.com
http://avoyellestoday.com/news-lifestyle/desfoss%C3%A9-house-avoyelles%E2%80%99-oldest-home
http://avoyellestoday.com/news-lifestyle/desfoss%C3%A9-house-avoyelles%E2%80%99-oldest-home
http://bit.ly/2by5AJV


September 2016  243-113 

 

SU Ag Center provides teachers with insight into teaching children of incarcerated parents 

  

 

SU Ag Center Project Coordinator for Prison-Based 

Programs Dr. Tiffany Wilkerson-Franklin, and Dr. 

Leslie T. Grover, Assistant Professor of 

Public Administration and Public Policy, 

made a presentation during an Urban 

Education Mini Conference held on the 

Southern University Baton Rouge 

campus on Saturday, July 16, 2016. 

 

The duo responded to the invitation of 

Southern University’s College of 

Education Professor, Dr. Lisa Delpit to 

address a group of Master of Arts in 

Teaching (MAT) students on the topic of 

“Understanding the Intricate Matters of Children of 

Incarcerated Parents: Through Another Set of 

Eyes.” 

 

 

 

 

 

The objectives of the presentation were:  

To share information with teachers who work with 

children who may be at risk; To create a 

dialogue among professionals with 

varying levels of expertise; and To 

brainstorm on ways to deal with youth 

from varying backgrounds. 

 

MAT is a 15-month Master’s Degree 

and certification program designed to 

assist individuals who are interested in 

teaching grades 1 - 5 in an urban setting. 

To obtain more information on the MAT 

program, contact Dr. Diana Kelly at 225-771-3640 

or 225-771-3961. 

 

For additional information on the presentation, 

contact Dr. Tiffany Wilkerson-Franklin at 225-771-

2242 or via e-mail at: 

tiffany_franklin@suagcenter.com. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr. Franklin presenting



September 2016  243-113 

 

 

Focus Group on economic revival held in Waterproof, Tensas Parish 

 

On September 1, some Research and Extension 

professionals from the Southern University 

Agricultural Research and Extension Center hosted 

a focus group with the concerned 

citizens of Waterproof, La.  

Among the 10 participants were 

Chief of Police Valerie Clark; 

Mayor Caldwell Flood; 

Alderwoman Veronica Stacker 

and retired educator Mary 

Frances Earl.  Although 

Waterproof has its unique 

qualities, the town has a dire need for additional 

resources to revive the housing, education, 

employment, and community engagement.  SU Ag 

Center staff who attended the meeting included: Dr. 

Ben Lukongo, Project Director, assisted by Co-

Project Directors Dr. Kenyetta Nelson-Smith and 

Dr. Tiffany Franklin, a native of Waterproof.  Mr. 

Eual Hall, Business Development Specialist at the 

Center for Rural and Small Business Development, 

provided handouts to attendees that will assist them 

with small business development.   

The Ag Center’s team working on the Evans Allen 

funded project entitled “Integrating Methods of 

Economic Development Analyses for Economically 

Distressed Communities in Louisiana,” is  gathering 

a range of ideas, insights and solutions to support 

economic development of communities throughout 

the state of Louisiana.  It is a new University-

Community Engagement project to improve the 

quality of life of residents.   

 

 

 

 

 

“Our team is excited to obtain ideas from you, listen 

to your stories and experiences, take into 

consideration your input, discuss and co-create the 

future vision of your community; 

collaborate to improve your 

community; identify issues that need 

more research and actions, and 

discuss alternative solutions, realistic 

plans, resources, and assets needed 

to better your community,” said Dr. 

Lukongo. 

The participants were eager to share 

their personal experiences about living in 

Waterproof and how they can make improvements 

that will put their community in the limelight and 

attract tourists.  However, this will require 

assistance from outside entities such as local, state, 

and federal agencies, said Alderwoman Stacker.  As 

an incentive for attending, eligible participants will 

receive a $25 gift card.  Dr. Lukongo will review 

the focus group responses and provide a detailed 

report of the findings.   

Waterproof, La. is located in Tensas Parish, along 

the Mississippi River.  Tensas Parish is home to 

some historic sites, which include Winter Quarters 

in Newellton, and Lake Bruin State Park in St. 

Joseph.   

This project provides an excellent opportunity for 

citizens in rural areas across the state to share their 

vision to restore their small communities to where 

they used to thrive with larger populations and 

businesses.  For more information on how to get 

your community involved with this study, contact: 

Dr. Ben Lukongo at 225-771-5385; Dr. Kenyetta 

Nelson-Smith at 225-771-5598; or Dr. Tiffany 

Wilkerson-Franklin at 225-771-2775.  

 

 

Dr. Franklin, right, hands out 
questionnaire to participants



September 2016  243-113 

 

 

 

 

Researchers Study Specialty Mushrooms as a niche crop for small farmers 

 

 

Researchers at the Southern University Ag Center 

are studying the use of specialty mushrooms such as 

shiitake, oyster and rice-straw mushrooms as 

potential niche market crops for small 

family farms in Louisiana. 

These mushrooms are an excellent 

choice for small farmers because of 

their nutritional value and medicinal 

properties.  The mushrooms will not 

only utilize agricultural wastes (such 

as wheat straws, sawdust and wood 

chips of oak species, hay or lawn 

clippings) and fetch a good price in 

the market, but they have a very short growing 

cycle of 1-3 months.  All these characteristics make 

these mushrooms conducive to be developed as a 

small grower enterprise to enhance farm income.   

Dr. Kit L. Chin, Professor of Horticulture, is spear-

heading this specialty mushroom research to 

develop feasible and sustainable cultivation 

methods through a USDA-NIFA funded project 

entitled, “Specialty Mushroom as a Niche Marker 

Crop for Limited Resource Small Family Farms.”  

The research seeks to develop appropriate low-cost 

production systems to produce both nutritive and 

antioxidant mushrooms. The production of these 

mushrooms will also assist in the reduction of costs 

associated with agrowaste disposal, provide a 

cleaner and healthy environment, and 

aid in economic development for 

Louisiana. 

To speed-up the program’s 

development, the project has 

established research collaboration 

with Paul Lai of CePaul Mushroom 

Nursery in Malaysia.  Lai has more 

than 30 years of mushroom 

production experience and has been 

providing training and consulting services 

throughout Southeast Asia.  

On Sept. 2, Lai held a seminar on specialty 

mushrooms at the Southern University Ag Center, 

which provided information on best practices for 

cultivating specialty mushrooms. 

For additional information on the Southern 

University Ag Center’s Specialty Mushroom as a 

Niche Marker Crop for Limited Resource Small 

Family Farms Project, contact Dr. Kit L. Chin at 

225-771-2242. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chin and Lai seated, 
demonstrate mushroom 

cultivation to Qi and 
Snowden



September 2016  243-113 

 

Historic Flood in Louisiana Attests to the Importance of Flood Research in Sustaining Urban Forests  

 

Louisiana’s recent historic flood has attested to the 

importance of SU Ag Center’s flood research in 

sustaining urban forests and mitigating damage. 

Understanding the responses of urban tree species 

subjected to flooding is crucial for the management of 

natural resources in general and urban forests in 

particular. The 2016 flood in Louisiana has 

demonstrated the need for 

research addressing urban 

flooding and how urban trees 

respond to the stress. The 

research project at the Urban 

Forestry and Natural 

Resources Department 

addresses such a need. A 

funded project by the 

USDA/NIFA Capacity 

Building Grant Program, has 

been investigating the 

response of urban tree species to flooding and elevated 

CO2.   These stressful conditions may influence the full 

range of ecological processes that operate in urban forest 

systems, including tree sapling survival. Dr. Zhu H. 

Ning, Project Director and Urban Forestry Professor, has 

been leading a group of students to research on the 

impact of these stress factors on select tree species.   

The greenhouse research experiments subjected tree 

saplings of nine commonly planted tree species to 

periodic flooding using flood simulation tanks. The 

research team has been collecting data on tree 

photosynthesis, stomatal conductance, and 

transpiration under a range of elevated CO2 settings 

from 400 ppm to 800 ppm. The uniqueness of the 
research project is that it tests the combined effects 

of two stressors, flooding and elevated CO2, which 

was not done before by others.  

 

The project has yielded valuable results on tree 

species selection for flood tolerance and urban 

forest management in a changing climate.  

Ning and her student team have disseminated their 

research results in sixteen publications and eight 

presentations at the national and international 

levels. Among them, seven publications are 

produced by students as lead authors; one doctoral 

dissertation; two M.S. theses; and six with students 

as co-authors. The project has provided $172,800 in 

graduate assistantships and 

undergraduate student 

research stipends. The 

project has also obtained a 

supplemental funding of 

$25,000 from US 

Geological Survey Climate 

and Land-use Change 

Program to support an 

additional 10 undergraduate 

students.  

 

The value of this study can best be described by 

some of the students who are participating in the 

research project. For example, Brittany Benjamin, a 

Master’s degree student, stated that from the data 

she collected, she concludes that Crabapple trees do 

not perform well during flood, therefore, it should 

not be planted in flood prone areas. Wilbert 

Thomas, a Doctoral candidate found that Japanese 

Magnolia could recover well from flood impact. 

Chris Smith, an M.S. degree student described that 

after the recent flood in Baton Rouge and 

surrounding areas, especially losing his own home 

to flood water, this project and the importance of 

the flood -based research has been put into 

perspective. He indicated that it is important to 

plant flood tolerate trees to mitigate surface runoff 

and to reduce the amount of water flowing into 

properties during natural disasters. And that the 

research data he collected provide first-hand 

information and contribute to the regional urban 

forest recovery.  

 

 

L-r: Brittany Benjamin, M.S. 
degree student, Wilbert Thomas, 
doctoral student, and Dr. Zhu H. 

Ning, Project Director and faculty 
advisor



September 2016  243-113 

 

 

FACULTY & STAFF ACCOMPLISHMENTS & ACTIVITIES 

Publications:  

Fatemah Malekian, Ph.D., nutrition professor, 

Sebhatu Gebrelul, Ph.D., animal science professor, 

James F. Henson, Ph.D., statistician, Kasundra D. 

Cyrus, Ed.D., professor of family and consumer 

sciences, De’Shoin Y. Friendship, extension 

specialist, and Mfamara Goita, research associate, 

co-authored an article with Dr. Betty M. Kennedy, 

Pennington Biomedical Research Center. The 

research article entitled “the effects of whey protein, 

resistant starch and nutrition education on body 

weight” was published in a recent issue of 

Functional Foods in Health and Disease Journal 

(FFHD); Vol 6, No 7 (2016): July 2016. The article 

is available in the FFHD online version at 

http://ffhdj.com/index.php/ffhd/issue/view/73 

The Functional Foods in Health and 

Disease journal is a peer-reviewed open access 

journal, which discusses various aspects of 

functional foods, bioactive compounds, and chronic 

diseases. 

 

 

Dr. Yadong Qi, Urban Forestry Professor, and Dr. 

Kit L. Chin, Horticulturist, co-authored a review 

research article with Dr. Xiaobin Liu, former SU 

Ag Center researcher. The article entitled “Growth 

and Development Responses to UVB Exclusion in 

Crops,” is published in the current issue of 

International Journal of Plant Production.  

The paper can be accessed at 

http://ijpp.gau.ac.ir/article_3048_145bc812df0f4a7d

9fcf29676c17f798.pdf . The complete citation is: 

X.B. Liu, Y. Qi, and K.L. Chin. 2016. Growth and 

Development Responses to UVB Exclusion in 

Crops, International Journal of Plant Production, 

10(4): 543-550. 

 

In the news:  

The Chronicle of Higher Education magazine listed 

Dr. Bobby Phills in its ‘Top Chief Executives and 

Appointments,’ section of the publication. The 

information can be viewed by clicking the 

following link: 

http://www.chronicle.com/article/Appointments-

Resignations/237669?cid=rc_right. 

 

Associate Professor/DVM, Renita Wood-

Marshall, along with SU Alum and Director of the 

Hammond Animal Hospital and Pet Lodge/DVM, 

Tyra Davis Brown, appeared on NBC 33’s morning 

show on Sept. 5th to promote the Center’s upcoming 

“Disaster Relief Wellness Clinic for Dogs and 

Cats.”  

The interview can be viewed by clicking the 

following link: 

http://www.brproud.com/news/local-news/southern-

ag-center-to-host-pet-wellness-clinic.  

 

An article on the Southern University Board of 

Supervisors naming Dr. Bobby Phills as 

Chancellor of the SU Ag Center and Dean of the 

College of Agriculture appeared in The Advocate 

Newspaper on Sept. 7 and in The Journal of Blacks 

in Higher Education on Sept. 12. The articles can 

be viewed on the Advocate website and at The 

Journal of Blacks in Higher Education. 

http://www.ffhdj.com/index.php/ffhd/article/view/210/415
http://www.ffhdj.com/index.php/ffhd/article/view/210/415
http://www.ffhdj.com/index.php/ffhd/article/view/210/415
http://ffhdj.com/index.php/ffhd/issue/view/73
http://ijpp.gau.ac.ir/article_3048_145bc812df0f4a7d9fcf29676c17f798.pdf
http://ijpp.gau.ac.ir/article_3048_145bc812df0f4a7d9fcf29676c17f798.pdf
http://www.chronicle.com/article/Appointments-Resignations/237669?cid=rc_right
http://www.chronicle.com/article/Appointments-Resignations/237669?cid=rc_right
http://www.brproud.com/news/local-news/southern-ag-center-to-host-pet-wellness-clinic
http://www.brproud.com/news/local-news/southern-ag-center-to-host-pet-wellness-clinic
http://www.theadvocate.com/baton_rouge/news/communities/baker/article_ea96c24e-7128-11e6-a6cf-7b1b42a9a7d9.html
https://www.jbhe.com/2016/09/the-new-chancellor-of-the-southern-university-agricultural-research-and-extension-center/
https://www.jbhe.com/2016/09/the-new-chancellor-of-the-southern-university-agricultural-research-and-extension-center/


September 2016  243-113 

 

UPCOMING EVENTS:  

October 5:  National Youth Science Day. Youth 

from 4-H clubs, groups, and school programs across 

the country will participate in Drone Discovery, the 

4-H NYSD 2016 Engineering Design Challenge. At 

Southern University, the event will take place from 

9:30 a.m. – 12 p.m. in the Smith-Brown Student 

Union. Contact Dr. Tiffany Franklin for full detail 

by calling 225-771-2242. 

 

Oct. 19: 2016 High Tunnel Pest Management 

workshop. The “High Tunnel Pest Exclusion 

System and Proper Use of Alternative Insecticides 

Workshop” will be held at the LSU Ag Center 

Burden Center, Baton Rouge. Contact Mila Berhane 

at 225-771-2242 for further detail. The workshop is 

sponsored by Southern SARE, SU and LSU Ag 

Centers. 

### 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Oct 20:  2016 High Tunnel Pest Management 

workshop. The “High Tunnel Pest Exclusion 

System and Proper Use of Alternative Insecticides 

Workshop” will be held in Alexandria starting at 9 

30 am. Contact Mila Berhane at 225-771-2242 for 

further detail. The workshop is sponsored by 

Southern SARE, SU and LSU Ag Centers. 

 



9/15/2016 Photos: Pet Clinic | Baton Rouge | theadvocate.com

http://www.theadvocate.com/baton_rouge/collection_f7a3555079e411e6bfd3a3bd36e6f6d0.html 1/2





Photos: Pet Clinic
SEP 13, 2016 - 2:30 PM

PREVIOUS

Man ticketed in Sorrento train crash

Southern University holds a free pet clinic for 㘀ood victims. (Advocate sta漀椀 photos by PATRICK DENNIS)

Buy NowAdvocate Sta漀椀 Photo by PATRICK DENNIS

A young catahoula hound waits in line for health care treatment at Southern University's Pet Clinic Monday.
Two vets and more volunteers administered vaccinations and ID chips along with medications for heart
worms to pets and displaced animals for people a漀椀ected by the 㘀ooding. More than 200 animals were treated
during the four hour period.

 

http://www.theadvocate.com/baton_rouge/article_9d6f2a24-79fc-11e6-b3b3-bfd16faf0da5.html
http://www.theadvocate.com/baton_rouge/collection_9b05a0f0-794e-11e6-ae94-f3120e94a2bb.html
http://www.theadvocate.com/baton_rouge/article_9d6f2a24-79fc-11e6-b3b3-bfd16faf0da5.html
http://theadvocate.mycapture.com//mycapture/remoteimage.asp?backtext=Return%20to%20photo&backurl=&thumbpath=http%3A%2F%2Fbloximages.newyork1.vip.townnews.com%2Ftheadvocate.com%2Fcontent%2Ftncms%2Fassets%2Fv3%2Feditorial%2F0%2F43%2F043054c0-845c-5e7b-b875-a1ff3cd66612%2F57d74e2a9c5ba.image.jpg%3Fresize%3D540%252C395&previewpath=http%3A%2F%2Fbloximages.newyork1.vip.townnews.com%2Ftheadvocate.com%2Fcontent%2Ftncms%2Fassets%2Fv3%2Feditorial%2F0%2F43%2F043054c0-845c-5e7b-b875-a1ff3cd66612%2F57d74e2a9c5ba.image.jpg%3Fresize%3D540%252C395&notes=http://bloximages.newyork1.vip.townnews.com/theadvocate.com/content/tncms/assets/v3/editorial/0/43/043054c0-845c-5e7b-b875-a1ff3cd66612/57d74e2a9f84a.~townnews~.jpg




 

 
 

  September 2016 

Interim Chancellor’s Report 

 

Civil Rights Attorney Thomas N. Todd  (left photo) was the guest speaker at the Fall University Conference Monday, Aug. 15 in the  
Conference Center.  In right photo, Dr. Lisa Mims-Devezin presides over her first University Conference as Interim Chancellor. 

Mims-Devezin Presides Over 1st University Conference 

T he faculty and staff at Southern University at New 
Orleans gathered in the SUNO Conference Center on 
Monday. Aug. 15 for the annual Fall University Confer-
ence. This year’s conference marked Dr. Lisa Mims-
Devezin’s first as Interim Chancellor.  
 
During the State of University Address, Dr. Mims-
Devezin, and other SUNO administrators,  gave updates  

 
on facilities, accreditation initiatives, Title IX require-
ments, Active Shooter Training, AACSB International Re
-affirmation, finances and the 60th Anniversary. 
 
A highlight of the conference was a motivational speech 
by Thomas N. Todd, a civil rights attorney from Chicago, 
IL.  He encouraged attendees to focus on teaching and 
serving students, instead of state budget cuts, etc. 

See MICROSOFT, Page 2 

Twenty-three SUNO students, faculty and staff began  
a new eight-week intensive training in preparation for 
the Microsoft/CompTIA A+ certification Boot Camp 
Friday, Sept. 9 in the College of Business Building. 
This fifth Microsoft/CompTIA Boot Camp is facilitat-
ed by Mr. Randy Wild, who holds several certifica-

Microsoft/Comp TIA A+  Boot Camp Begins 



 2 

Microsoft continued  
tions, including Microsoft Certified System Administration; A+; CompTIA Network; and Microsoft Desktop 
Support Technician, to name a few.  
 
This training is the first step towards getting these students and faculty prepared to participate in the Basic  
MICROSOFT (MTA-MCSA) Boot Camp.  
 
Meanwhile, the sixth Basic CISCO Networking Boot Camp started Saturday, Sept. 10, 2016 with 20 SUNO stu-
dents and faculty. It will end in November. The CISCO Boot Camp is facilitated by Mr. Charles Andrews, a high-
ly credentialed CISCO network professional.  
 
The two Boot Camps were made possible through a 2014 Louisiana Board of Regents grant, and are aimed at 
increasing the enrollment, retention, graduation and job placement rates for information technology, education, 
and business majors. Dr. Igwe Udeh is the Principal Investigator of this grant. 

College of Education & Human Development 
Dr. Willie Jones, Interim Dean 
►Highlights 

Interim Dean Willie Jones is continuing his efforts to develop two new undergraduate programs for the College 
of Education & Human Development: the Bachelor of Science in Birth-K and Bachelor of Science degree in Edu-
cational Studies.   
 
Drs. Jones and Jenita Hegwood are working on redesigning the Elementary Education curriculum and field expe-
rience by using curriculum mapping.  
 

►Research  

Dr. Diane Bordenave continues her preparations to implement the Tulane/SUNO three-year grant from the Insti-
tute for Mental Hygiene to prepare Child Development and Family Studies students to act as "parent whisperers" 
in the Talk, Touch and Listen While Combing Hair 8-week parent groups. 
 

►Grantsmanship 

Drs. Bordenave, Hegwood, Jones and Sherry Bachus are developing a proposal to the Board of Regents, entitled 
Birth – Kindergarten (Birth-K) Program Enhancement Through Partnerships, Professional Development, and New Student 
Learning Technologies. The goal of this project is to enhance the College of Education and Human Development’s 
Birth-K program through K-12 schools partnerships, faculty pedagogical development, new curricula tools, and 
student learning experiences. 
 

►Other News 

Dr. Bordenave peer-reviewed  two articles to be published in the American Research Journal. 
 
Dr.  Jones served on CAEP Assessment Review Team to evaluate assessment submitted to CAEP for approval.  



 
3 

►Dr. Frank Martin 

Dr. Martin attended a University and Industry Innovators’ Roundtable of the New Orleans Regional Innovation 
Alliance (NORIA) Friday, Sept. 9 at the office of GNO, Inc. located in the New Orleans Entergy Center. The sub-
ject of the Roundtable was “Leveraging Intellectual Assets to Grow Business, Talent, and Brand.” 
 
NORIA is a consortium of universities, community colleges and economic development organizations funded by 
the Economic Development Administration (EDA). SUNO is a member of the consortium.  
 
Before the roundtable discussion breakout, a panel discussed Corporate/University Partnerships in the Region. 
The three panel members were Alex Reed (President and CEO, APMT, Inc.), Russell Wilson (President and CSO, 
Autoimmune Technologies), and Bobbie Savoie (President and CEO, Geocent). The breakouts brainstormed three 
issues: 

 What is one action that universities can take to meet the needs of business for R&D and university 
talent? 

 What is one action that businesses can take to increase business-university R&D partnerships (new 
start-up, services and processes)? 

 What is one action that the New Orleans Regional Innovation Alliance can take to strengthen and 
expand R&D university-corporate partnerships in the region? 

Several actions items came out of the brainstorming. The results will be disseminated to the NORIA and 
Roundtable participants. 
 

►Journal Publication 

Adnan Omar, Muhammed Miah: Quality Computer Labs Promote Student Success, World Journal of Engineering 

Research and Technology, 2016, Vol 2, issue 5, 18-28. 
 

►Conference Paper Submission & Acceptance 

Obyung Kwun, Help Seeking and Interaction between Student and Instructor (accepted, co-authored by Dr. David 
Alijani), International Academy of Business & Public Administration Disciplines (IABPAD) Conference in 
New Orleans October 19-22. 
 

►SBDMI Workshops/Seminars/Trainings/Meetings  

 Met to discuss Collaboration between New Orleans Media Arts Institute (NOMI), WoodForest Na-
tional Bank and SBDMI; August 2, 2016; SBDMI Conference Room; Mr. Kemic Smothers, Ms. Lavon 
Burbank and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu. 

 Build NOLA Boot Camp; August 13 & 20, 2016; Met with participants of the City of New Orleans 
Build NOLA Program to teach construction estimating; CBA Room 100; Mr. Michael Bejarano and 
Ms. Pam Carrie. 

 Final NxLevel Start-up Entrepreneurial Class; August 15, 2016; SBDMI Conference Room; 7 Partici-
pants; Ms. Angel VanDerPool & Ms. Diana Thomas. 

 Contractors Diversity Conference on Upcoming Diversity Study; August 15, 2016; University Confer-
ence Center; Sponsored by City of New Orleans, The Legislative Black Caucus and the SBDMI; Ap-
proximate 50 individuals in attendance; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, Ms. Diana Thomas, Dr. Igwe Udeh 
and Ms. Erma Dixon. 

 Met with City of New Orleans Build NOLA to discuss upcoming Build NOLA session in collabora-
tion with the SBDMI; August 17, 2016; Mr. Michael Bejarano, Ms. Erma Dixon, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu, 
Ms. Corine Herman and Ms. Diana Thomas. 

 LED Peer-to-Peer Orientation; August 17 & 18, 2016; 17 participants in attendance; CBA Room 100; 

College of Business & Public Administration 
Dr. Igwe Udeh, Dean 



 4 

Business Continued 

Ms. Erma Dixon, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 

 Notary Prep Class; 1st Class; August 20 & 27; 12 participants; classes meet every Saturday 9 a.m. to 2 
p.m.; Ms. Suzan Jackson and Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu.     

 District “A” Small Business Fair, sponsored by Councilmember Susan Guidry; August 30, 2016; 
Audubon Tea Room; 5:30 to 7:30 p.m.; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas. 

 LED Peer-to-Peer Meeting; August 31, 2016; 1st Meeting of group; 16 participants; CBA Room 100; 
Ms. Erma Dixon, Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas.   

 Conference Call Independent Development Account (IDA); Woodforest National Bank; Bank Execu-
tive; Possible Collaboration on IDA Project; Ms. Cynthia Beaulieu and Ms. Diana Thomas.  

 

►Office of Student Services  

 Reached out and registered students registered for Spring 2016, but who did not register for Fall 2016 

 Conducted suspension workshop for students suspended for Fall 2016 

 Conducted suspension appeal hearings for suspended CBA students 

 Communicated action taken by CBA Academic Action Committee to affected students 

 Wrote letters of recommendation for a student seeking graduate school 

Student Affairs 
► Royal Court 

The following students will serve as members of the 2016-2017 Royal Court: 

 Miss SUNO — Germika Stewart 

 Miss Senior — Lillie Johnson 

 Miss Junior — Erinique Little 

 Miss Sophomore — Nykia McCray 

 Miss Freshman — Kamaryn Hunt 

 

► Student Government Association 

The following students will serve as 2016-2017 officers of the Student Government Association: 

 President — Louis Blackman 

 Vice President — Dominique Carter 

 Senior Class President — Jarred Jupiter 

 Junior Class President — Erica Jefferson 

 Sophomore Class President — Vacant 

 Freshman Class President — Jariel Charlot 

 Senior Class Senator — Adrianna Titonea 

 Junior Class Senator — Vacant 

 Sophomore Class Senator — Jacy Haynes 

 Freshman Class Senator — Arthur Jackson 



 5 

►Natural Sciences  

Dr. Alvin Bopp became Chair of the Department of Natural Sciences at the beginning of the Fall 2016 semester. 
 

►Dr. Illya Tietzel  

During August, Dr. Wei Xu from the LSU Agricultural Center in Baton Rouge and Dr. Tietzel collaborated on re-
search on metabolic activities of microbes from different aquatic sources. Dr. Tietzel provided the BIOLOG reader 
and BIOLOG Eco plates at SUNO that allow metabolic fingerprinting of microbes and microbial communities. 
 
Dr. Tietzel, with the support of Dr. Pamela Marshall, the Director of the Forensic Science program, used the Scan-
ning Electron Microscope of the Forensic Science Program to study nanoparticles and microbes for his microfluidic 
research. 
 
On August 12 & 13,  Dr. Tietzel and SUNO student Altoneisha Rose visited Dr. Niel Crews, Director Institute of 
Micromanufacturing at Louisiana Tech University, and his group at Louisiana Tech University. The SUNO team 
brought their microfluidic designs manufactured during the summer for testing at LaTech. During the visit, PDMS 
ports were attached. Also, the mixing behavior of the microfluidic devices was empirically tested by pumping dif-
ferently colored fluids through the channel systems and video recording the flow and mixing. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
On August 3, Dr. Niel Crews trained Dr. Tietzel and his four undergraduate mentees (Altoneisha Rose, April Har-
ding, Diamanika Moss, and Akira Lumpkin) in microfluidics and nanoport assembly. 
 

►Addictive Behaviors Counseling and Prevention Program  

Several members of the ABCP Program faculty and students attended the state conference for addiction counse-
lors in Baton Rouge. “Charting the Course: Prevention, Treatment, and Recovery” was the theme for the 40th An-
nual Conference of the Louisiana Association of Substance Abuse Counselors and Trainers (LASACT) July 31 – 
Aug. 3.  
 

College of Arts & Sciences 
Dr. Evelyn Harrell, Interim Dean 

Flow tests during visit of PI and SUNO team visiting Dr. Niel Crews in August. The left photo shows the biosafety 
cabinet with the video camera and microscope system used to document the flow behavior of colored nanoparti-
cles or fluids. The syringe pumps are below the microscope. Pictured from left are Dr. Niel Crews, Dr. Tietzel , Dr. 
Gergana Nestorova, a post-doctoral fellow, and graduate student Varun Kopparthy. In the right photo, SUNO  
student Altoneisha Rose connects tubing to the syringe and a mircofluidic device. Varun Kopparthy  advises her. 



 6 

Addictive Behaviors Continued 

Those in attendance included Dr. Evelyn B. Harrell and professors Travis Johnson, Anthony Lowery and Berna-
dine Williams. More than 20 graduates/current students of the ABCP Program also attended.  Participants were 
able to earn 24.5 Continuing Education Units (CEUs), which are required to maintain certification and licensure 
credentials for addiction counselors.  
 
►Health Information Management Systems  
Ms. Pharissa Robinson, Director of the Health Information Management Systems program would like to extend a 
warm welcome to Mr. John Barrilleaux, Accreditation Coordinator/Assistant Professor; Ms. Laura Douresseaux, 
Clinical Coordinator/Assistant Professor; and Mrs. Sharon McGee.  All faculty are Registered Health Information 
Administrators and hold other HIMS-related credentials. 
 
The Greater New Orleans Health Information Management Association had an Instillation of Officers’ Dinner  
Aug. 10.  Congratulations to Mr. John Barrilleaux, president; Mrs. Sharon McGee, president-elect; and Ms. Laura 
Douresseaux, district representative. 
 
Congratulations goes out to HIMS students Ms. CaJuana Bass and Ms Keri Burns.  They were awarded the SUNO 
Chancellor’s Scholarship.  Ms. Burns also received the Alpha Kapa Alpha Educational Advancement Foundation, 
Inc., and CBC Spouses Education scholarships. 
 

►Museum Studies  

The M.A. Museum Studies Faculty welcome a new adjunct professor, Dr. Ronni Armstead. 
 
On Aug. 19, Dr. Haitham Eid attended the phone conference for the MCN 2016 organizing committee.   

 
Dr. Haitham Eid served as a judge for the annual art contest, “What a Wonderful World,” organized by New Or-
leans Jazz Celebration. The contest took place at the New Orleans Jazz and Heritage Gallery Aug. 12.  
 

►General Studies 

Dr. Deneen Lewis and Ms. Karen Washington attended the EPAF Training –The Hiring Process using Self-
Service Banner on Aug. 12. 

Pictured from left: Yvette Thierry 
(2016 graduate), Dr. Evelyn Har-
rell (Chair), Samuel Johnson 
(2016 graduate) and Sabrina 
Alexander (2015 graduate).   






















	Board of Supervisors Meetings 9/30/16
	Academic Affairs Committee
	A.Updates on Memorandum of Understanding for Connect Programs:
	B.Update on Academic Stabilization Plan, SUBR
	Facilities and Property Committee
	A.Request Approval of Capital Outlay 2017-18, SUS
	B.Request Approval of Five-Year Capital Outlay Plans, SUS
	A.Priority Projects Update, SUS
	Finance Committee
	A.Request Approval of Revised Tenured Faculty Retirement Incentive Plan and NewUnclassified Employees Retirement Incentive Plan, SULC
	B.Request Approval of Testing Fee for Aviation Program Students, SUSLA
	A.Interim Financial Report as of August, 2016
	Personnel Affairs Committee
	A.Request Approval of Revised Tenured Faculty Retirement Incentive Plan and NewUnclassified Employees Retirement Incentive Plan, SULC
	1.Nadia Washington Seals
	2.Jalyn Davis Jones
	3.Anissa Stover
	4.Eli Guillory
	5.TBN
	6.Vinnie Marcell
	C.Request Approval of Sabbatical Leave for Guang-Lin Zhao, Spring Semester 2017, SUBR
	D.Request Approval of Extended Sick Leave for Etta Dunn, August 10, 2016 to May 10, 2017,(With Pay), SUBR
	Employment Contract for Dr. Bobby Phills

	Recruitment and Admissions Committee
	Fall 2016 Enrollment Updates, by Campuses
	Board of Supervisors
	Minutes of August 26, 2016 meeting
	Restructured Organizational Framework, SUSLA


	SUAgCenter_chancellor's report_Sept2016_final.pdf
	SUAgCenter_chancellor's report_Sept2016_final
	Pet clinic at SU Ag Center
	The Advocate article on the SU Ag Center's Pet Wellness Clinic 9-13-16
	Photos_ Pet Clinic _ Baton Rouge _ theadvocate





